
Page 1 of 3 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

THURSDAY                          TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
OCTOBER 17, 2024 – 2:00 P.M.     4300 S. ATLANTIC AVENUE, PONCE INLET, FL 

SUNSHINE LAW NOTICE FOR BOARD MEMBERS – Notice is hereby provided that one 
or more members of the Town’s various boards may attend and speak at this meeting. 

A complete copy of the materials for this agenda is available at Town Hall. 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

3. ROLL CALL. 

NOTE: Citizens who wish to speak during Public Participation about any subject that is not on the meeting 
agenda should fill out the Citizen Participation Request form and submit it to the Town Clerk prior to the 
start of the meeting.   

4. ADDITIONS, CORRECTIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA. 

5. CITIZENS’ PARTICIPATION - The Town of Ponce Inlet encourages engagement by citizens 
via a variety of means. This is an opportunity for our citizens to talk to us collectively on any subject that 
is not identified on the meeting agenda. The Town’s Rules for Conducting Town Council meetings are set 
forth in Resolution 2024-09 and include the following guidelines: 

• Citizens are provided with 5 minutes at each meeting to speak on one or more issues that are not 
otherwise placed on the meeting agenda. 

• Please introduce yourself with your name and address clearly for the record. 
• Share with us your thoughts, ideas, and opinions; we want to hear them. 
• Under our rules, all questions and comments are directed to the Mayor. 

While some questions may be able to be addressed at this meeting, others may require research or more 
information than we have readily available from our staff, so we may have to defer the response to you 
until we have that information. Also, depending on the type of issue, we may place the matter on a properly 
noticed subsequent meeting agenda. As a Council, we welcome the opportunity to hear from you and hope 
you will speak with us not only during Citizen Participation but outside of these meetings. We understand 
the formal nature of this meeting, but rest assured, we want to hear from you, we want to address your 
concerns, and we are appreciative of your involvement. 

6. PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND AWARDS:  

A. Certificate of Recognition to Braeden Kopec for his national surfing championship. 

B. Mayor’s Report of Proclamations. 

7.  CONSENT AGENDA - Items on the consent agenda are defined as routine in nature that do not 
warrant detailed discussion or individual action by the Council; therefore, all items remaining on the 
consent agenda shall be approved and adopted by a single motion, second and vote by the Town Council. 



10/17/24 Regular Council Meeting  
      

  Page 2 of 3 

Items on the consent agenda are not subject to discussion. Any member of the Town Council may remove 
any item from the consent agenda simply by verbal request at the Town Council meeting. Removing an 
item from the consent agenda does not require a motion, second or a vote; it would simply be a unilateral 
request of an individual Council member and this item would then be added as the last item under New 
Business. As with all agenda items, the public will have the opportunity to comment prior to a motion being 
placed on the floor and their comment(s) may persuade the Council to remove the item from the Consent 
Agenda and place under New Business for discussion. 

A. Approval of the Town Council Regular meeting minutes. – September 19, 2024. 

B. Approval of the Town Council Special meeting minutes. – September 26, 2024.    

C. Request to approve piggyback contracts through the City of Edgewater for 
emergency debris monitoring services. 

8. OLD/NEW BUSINESS ITEMS PREFERRED AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 
MEETING: 

A. Financing for the 75’ Quint Fire Apparatus. 

i. Acceptance of Capital Finance Bid Proposal from Cogent Leasing and 
Financing, Inc. for the 75’ Quint Fire Apparatus. 

ii. Approval of Resolution 2024-20 Authorizing the Town Manager to Proceed 
with Entering into a Lease-Purchase Finance Agreement. 

B. Request to Dispose of Fixed Capital Asset – Fire Department Pierce Mini-Pumper. 

C. Request to Retain the Current Fire Engine as a Reserve Apparatus. 

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS / QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: None. 

10.   PUBLIC HEARINGS / NON-QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: None. 

11. ORDINANCES (FIRST READING) AND RESOLUTIONS:  

A. Ordinance 2024-06 – 1st reading – Amending Section 2.40 – Table of Permitted 
Uses in the Land Use and Development Code to include farmers markets as a major 
special exception use in the P-I (Public-Institutional) zoning district. 

B. Ordinance 2024-07 – 1st reading – Amending Chapters 1, 2, 6, 10, 18, 34, 42, 46, 
51, 62, 66, 70, 74, 78 and 82 of the Code of Ordinances to substitute references of 
the Code Enforcement Board with Special Magistrate. 

C. Ordinance 2024-08 – 1st reading – Amending Articles 3, 8, and 9 of the Land Use 
and Development Code to substitute references of the Code Enforcement Board 
with Special Magistrate. 



10/17/24 Regular Council Meeting  
      

  Page 3 of 3 

12.  OLD BUSINESS: None. 

13. NEW BUSINESS:  

A.  Lien abatement request for Guada Joseph – 4745 South Atlantic Avenue, Unit 404. 

B. Discussion – Recommendation to abolish restrictions on panhandling and 
aggressive solicitation following ruling by the U.S. District Court of the Middle 
District of Florida. 

14.    FROM THE TOWN COUNCIL: 

A. Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5 

B. Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 

C. Councilmember White, Seat #3 

D. Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 

E. Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 

15.  FROM THE TOWN MANAGER. 

16.  FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY. 

17.   CITIZENS’ PARTICIPATION - The Town of Ponce Inlet encourages engagement by citizens 
via a variety of means. This is another opportunity for our citizens to talk to us collectively for 2 minutes 
before closure of this meeting regarding reports provided by the Town Council, Town Manager, or Town 
Attorney in items 14-16 (only) of the meeting agenda. 

18.   ADJOURNMENT. 

Upcoming Town Council meeting(s) and Important date(s): 

• Thursday, November 21, 2024, 2:00 PM – Regular Town Council Meeting. 

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Town Council with respect to any matter considered at a 
meeting or hearing, he/she will need a record of the proceedings and that for such purpose, he/she may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is to be based.  Persons who require accommodation to attend this meeting should contact the Ponce Inlet 
Town Hall at 236-2150 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting to request such assistance. 



 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic:   Proclamations, Presentations, and Awards. 
 
Summary:  

 
A. Certificate of Recognition to Braeden Kopec for his national 

surfing championship. 
 
B. Mayor’s proclamation report. 

 
 

Suggested motion:   None required. 
 
Requested by:   Mayor Paritsky 
  
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 10/17/2024 

Agenda Item:   6 



Item 6-A



Item 6-B



Item 6-B



 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic: Consent Agenda 
 

A. Approval of the Town Council Regular meeting minutes. – 
September 19, 2024. 

 
B.  Approval of the Town Council Special meeting minutes. – 

September 26, 2024. 
 
C. Request to approve piggyback contracts through the City of 

Edgewater for emergency debris monitoring services. 
 

Summary:   See attached staff reports. 
 
Suggested motion:  To approve the Consent agenda as presented. 
 
Requested by: Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk 
    
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 10/17/2024 

Agenda Item:   7 



Town Council  September 19, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 10 

Town of Ponce Inlet 1 

Town Council 2 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3 

September 19, 2024 4 
5 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Pursuant to proper notice, Mayor Paritsky called the meeting to 6 
order at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at 4300 South Atlantic Avenue, Ponce Inlet, Florida. 7 

8 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Mayor Paritsky led the Pledge of Allegiance. 9 

10 
3. ROLL CALL: 11 

Town Council: 12 
Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 13 
Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 14 
Councilmember White, Seat #3 15 
Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 16 
Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5  17 

18 
Staff Members Present: 19 
Ms. Alex, Cultural Services Manager 20 
Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk 21 
Mr. Disher, Town Manager 22 
Ms. Dowling, HR Coordinator 23 
Mr. Dunlap, Acting Public Works Director 24 
Ms. Gjessing, Assistant Deputy Clerk 25 
Chief Glazier, Police Chief 26 
Ms. Hall, Assistant Finance Director 27 
Ms. Hugler, Fire Department Office Manager/PIO 28 
Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 29 
Ms. McColl, Finance Director 30 
Mr. Okum, IT Director 31 
Chief Scales, Public Safety Director 32 
Attorney Shepard, Town Attorney  33 

34 
Other representatives present: 35 
Ms. Barbara Ann Heegan, President & CEO of the Port Orange-South Daytona Chamber 36 
of Commerce 37 
Volusia Young Marines 38 

39 
4. ADDITIONS, CORRECTIONS, OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA: Item 6-A was 40 
postponed and replaced with a presentation regarding the results of a recent informal social media 41 
survey conducted by Town staff. Item 11-C was moved to Item 8-A. 42 

43 
Mayor Paritsky moved to approve the agenda as amended; seconded by Councilmember Milano; 44 
The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 45 

Item 7-A



 

   
Town Council   September 19, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes   Page 2 of 10 

5. CITIZENS PARTICIPATION: Mayor Paritsky opened citizens participation – Ms. 46 
Bonni Carney, 86 Rains Court, referred to the Town Charter, and discussed operations of the town 47 
and budget allocations. Mr. John Carney, 86 Rains Court, raised concerns regarding conflicts of 48 
interest, vehicle acquisitions, and purchasing policies. Mr. Shannon White, 39 Coastal Oaks Circle, 49 
stated the town needs to collectively analyze the needs, use, and requests for future budgets. He 50 
also commented on the vehicle fleets, land use restrictions, equipment, and how total funds are 51 
reflected. Steve Fields, 6 Mar Azul, provided suggestions for future budget cycles including setting 52 
targets by department, forming a budget committee, and amending the Land Acquisition Fund to 53 
include capital expenditures. 54 
 55 
Council directed staff to research amending Ordinance 2003-05 to include capital expenditures. 56 
 57 
Mr. Steve Miller, 383 Walnut Street, introduced himself as a candidate for County Council 58 
Member, District 2. Mr. Jim Sustr, 4650 Links Village Drive, commented on the cost participation 59 
arrangement for the Harbour Village dune walkover. Mayor Paritsky closed citizens participation. 60 
 61 
6. PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND AWARDS: 62 
 63 

A. Certificate of recognition to “Ponce Harvey Winchester” and his parents. –   64 
To be presented at a future regularly scheduled Town Council meeting. 65 
 66 

A. Presentation on “Life in Ponce Inlet” survey. – Ms. Becky Hugler, Fire 67 
Department Office Manager and PIO, provided the results of an informal survey recently 68 
conducted through social media on what people like most about living in Ponce Inlet. Comments 69 
included the love of the first responders, parks, community events, wildlife, and peaceful 70 
atmosphere. 71 

 72 
B. Proclamation – Declaring October 23-31 as Red Ribbon week, supporting the 73 

Volusia Young Marines. – Mayor Paritsky presented the Volusia Young Marines with a 74 
proclamation declaring October 23-31 as Red Ribbon Week. This proclamation is intended to 75 
encourage a drug-free lifestyle and involvement in drug prevention and reduction efforts. 76 
 77 

C. Port Orange-South Daytona Chamber of Commerce presentation: Ms. Barbara 78 
Ann Heegan provided the Council and residents with updates from the Port Orange – South 79 
Daytona Chamber of Commerce. She noted an upcoming event to be held at the Ponce Inlet 80 
Community Center on October 8th. Ms. Heegan also described a ten-week leadership course hosted 81 
by the Chamber each year.  82 
 83 
 D. Mayor’s Proclamation Report: Mayor Paritsky informed everyone she will be 84 
presenting proclamations declaring the month of October 2024 National Community Planning 85 
Month and Florida Native Plant Month and declaring the week of October 21st – 27th as Florida 86 
City Government Week. 87 
 88 
7. CONSENT AGENDA: Mayor Paritsky asked if there was any item Council would like to 89 
remove from the consent agenda; there were no requests. Mayor Paritsky asked if there were any 90 
requests from the public – there were none. 91 



 

   
Town Council   September 19, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes   Page 3 of 10 

 92 
A. Disposal of fixed assets. 93 

 94 
B. Approval of the Town Council Regular meeting minutes – August 22, 2024. 95 
 96 
C.  Approval of the Town Council Special Budget Hearing meeting minutes. – 97 

September 4, 2024. 98 
 99 
Mayor Paritsky moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented; seconded by Councilmember 100 
Milano; The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 101 
 102 
8. OLD/NEW BUSINESS ITEMS PREFERRED AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 103 
MEETING: (moved from item 11-C) 104 
 105 

A.  Purchase of 75’ quint fire apparatus. – Mayor Paritsky requested Resolution 106 
2024-19 be read by title only. Attorney Shepard read Resoltion 2024-19 by title only. A 107 
RESOLUTION OF TOWN OF PONCE INLET, VOLUSIA COUNTY FLORIDA, 108 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A LEASE-PURCHASE 109 
AGREEMENT WITH TD EQUIPMENT FINANCING, INC., WITH RESPECT TO THE 110 
ACQUISITION, FINANCING, LEASING, AND PURCHASE OF A 75’ QUINT FIRE 111 
APPARATUS; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS 112 
REQUIRED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH; AUTHORIZING ALL OTHER ACTIONS 113 
NECESSARY TO THE CONSUMMATION OF THE TRANSACTIONS 114 
CONTEMPLATED BY THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 115 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 116 
 117 

i. Request to purchase a 75’ quint apparatus from Matheny Fire and 118 
 Emergency in the amount of $1,263,200. – Mayor Paritsky introduced Chief Scales, and he 119 
answered questions related to his professional work history and credentials. He then provided a 120 
PowerPoint presentation detailing the request to purchase a 75’ quint fire apparatus. He stated the 121 
current apparatus is around 15 years old, and neighboring cities no longer have an aerial apparatus 122 
that the Town could use in case of an emergency. Discussions surrounding this purchase began in 123 
January 2024 and was supported by the Essential Services Advisory Board (ESAB) in March 2024. 124 
An opportunity became available in May 2024 for the purchase of a completed unit versus the 125 
original consideration of a vehicle with a build time of 24-36 months. Chief Scales explained 126 
features of the apparatus and how this will benefit the Town, as well as the benefits to placing the 127 
existing apparatus in reserves and how the new apparatus would be utilized regarding the number 128 
and different types of structures around Ponce Inlet. Chief Scales explained the available fire 129 
apparatus meets or exceeds the Town’s requirements and is within the anticipated price point. 130 
Councilmember White and Chief Scales discussed the types and availability of fire equipment in 131 
neighboring municipalities, restrictions to the use of the existing apparatus if placed in reserve, 132 
navigation of the truck through the Town, and when the new apparatus would be placed in service. 133 
Councilmember Milano spoke about the public sector bidding process and requested clarification 134 
between the 7-year versus 10-year term financing options. Mayor Paritsky asked whether it is in 135 
the best interest of the Town to purchase the new apparatus and to retain the existing truck in 136 
reserves; Chief Scales stated yes to both. Councilmember White stated his opposition to retaining 137 

file://TPIFS/Shared/Presentations/2024/Town%20Council/09-19-2024/8-A/Purchase%20of%20Aerial%20Apparatus%20Presentation.pdf


 

   
Town Council   September 19, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes   Page 4 of 10 

the existing truck in reserves. He further elaborated on the maintenance schedule, usage of the 138 
reserve truck, and terms of existing interlocal agreements.   139 
 140 

ii. Acceptance of proposal from TD Equipment Finance, Inc. for the 141 
financing of the 75’ quint fire apparatus. Chief Scales explained that due to the recent change 142 
in reduction in interest rates since the agenda was distributed, there have been discussion to re-143 
issue the request for proposals. Council concurred that would be a good idea, utilizing both 7- and 144 
10-year terms.  145 
 146 

iii. Resolution 2024-19 – Authorizing the execution and delivery of a lease- 147 
purchase agreement with TD Equipment Finance, Inc. for the acquisition, financing, leasing, 148 
and purchase of a 75’ quint fire apparatus from Matheny Fire and Emergency. – Resolution 149 
2024-19 was deemed obsolete considering the rejection of the financing proposals for the 150 
financing of the 75’ quint fire apparatus.  151 

 152 
Mayor Paritsky opened public participation – Mayor Paritsky read an email from Mr. Joe 153 
Jackerson, 4757 South Atlantic Avenue, in which he voiced his support for the purchase of the 154 
new fire apparatus. Mr. Ryan McConaughey, 66 Seawinds Circle, explained how he and the rest 155 
of the Essential Services Advisory Board members asked numerous questions regarding the 156 
purchase of the fire apparatus as part of their review and recommendation; he also stated that from 157 
his own experience, the town will benefit by purchasing the apparatus now versus waiting later, as 158 
prices will continue to increase. Mr. Tony Hynes, 4621 South Atlantic Avenue Unit 7703, asked 159 
if the ladder would reach the seventh floor of the Dimucci Tower; Chief Scales stated it would not. 160 
Mr. John Carney, 86 Rains Court, asked questions related to the purchasing timeline, piggyback 161 
agreements, the contract, and the truck’s lifespan. Ms. Bonni Carney, 86 Rains Court, asked when 162 
the new apparatus would be acquired and recommended a decision process based on the best value 163 
for the proposals rather than focusing on the lowest bid. Mr. Steve Field, 6 Mar Azul, suggested 164 
requesting 7- and 10-year proposals for financing of the apparatus. Ms. Judy DiCarlo, 32 165 
Caribbean Way, thanked staff for their daily efforts. Ms. Barbara Davis, 4871 Sailfish Drive, 166 
provided a brief history on fires that have occurred in Ponce Inlet and commented on retaining the 167 
existing fire truck for reserves. Mr. Shannon White, 39 Coastal Oaks, asked for the cost associated 168 
with storing the reserve fire apparatus and asked if all condominium buildings in Ponce Inlet had 169 
sprinkler systems. Chief Scales answered no. Mr. Robert Bullard, 4802 South Peninsula Drive, 170 
stated his opinion that if the existing apparatus is kept in reserves, it should be continuously used. 171 
Chief Scales clarified the truck would be used periodically. A brief discussion ensued between 172 
Councilmember White and Chief Scales regarding the budgeted amount for maintenance and 173 
insurance of both fire trucks, and who would be allowed to use the truck in reserves if it is stored 174 
in Port Orange or New Smyrna. Mr. Ken Cox, 4757 South Atlantic Avenue, provided a brief 175 
synopsis on the makeup of the Essential Services Advisory Board and his professional history. As 176 
Chair of the ESAB, he met with Chief Scales prior to the March ESAB meeting to discuss concerns 177 
he had related to the fire apparatus; he felt confident to recommend approval of this item. Ms. 178 
Cathy Harvey, 41 Loggerhead, spoke on meeting decorum. Mr. Field suggested accepting quotes 179 
for the current fire apparatus; Vice-Mayor Smith stated his belief that this would not be appropriate 180 
for a public setting. Mr. McConaughey commented on ways to support the maintenance cost and 181 
necessary training. A brief discussion ensued between Council on stipulations when readvertising 182 
the request for proposal of the financing of the fire apparatus. 183 

file://TPIFS/Shared/Presentations/2024/Town%20Council/09-19-2024/8-A/2.%20Mayors%20Citizen%20part.%20-%20JACKERSON%20EMAIL.PNG


 

   
Town Council   September 19, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes   Page 5 of 10 

 184 
Councilmember Milano made a motion to approve the piggyback agreement to purchase a 75’ 185 
quint apparatus from Matheny Fire and Emergency in the amount of $1,263,200, with the 186 
financing yet to be determined; seconded by Councilmember White. The motion PASSED, 5-0 with 187 
the following vote: Councilmember Milano – yes; Councilmember White – yes; Mayor Paritsky – 188 
yes; Councilmember Villanella – yes; Vice-Mayor Smith – yes. 189 
 190 
Councilmember Milano made a motion to reject the proposals from TD Equipment Finance, Inc. 191 
and all other RFP responders for the financing of the 75’ quint apparatus; seconded by 192 
Councilmember White. The motion PASSED, 5-0 with the following vote: Councilmember Milano 193 
– yes; Councilmember White – yes; Mayor Paritsky – yes; Councilmember Villanella – yes; Vice-194 
Mayor Smith – yes. 195 
 196 
9. PUBLIC HEARINGS / QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: None. 197 
 198 
10. PUBLIC HEARINGS / NON-QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: 199 
 200 

A. Ordinance 2024-03. Attorney Shepard read Ordinance 2024-03 by title only. AN 201 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE LAND 202 
USE AND DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE 3 USE REGULATIONS, SECTION 3.17 203 
DOCKS, BOATHOUSES, BOAT SLIPS, AND PIERS; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS AND 204 
STANDARDS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR 205 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 206 
EFFECTIVE DATE. – Mr. Disher explained this is the second reading of ordinance 2024-03 and 207 
there have been no changes. Mayor Paritsky opened public participation – hearing none, Mayor 208 
Paritsky closed public participation.  209 
 210 
Councilmember White moved to approve and adopt Ordinance 2024-03, amending Section 3.17, 211 
Docks, Boathouses, Boat Slips, and Piers of the Land Use and Development Code to be consistent 212 
with the comprehensive plan upon second reading; seconded by Councilmember Milano. The 213 
motion PASSED, 5-0 with the following vote: Councilmember White – yes; Councilmember Milano 214 
– yes; Mayor Paritsky – yes; Councilmember Villanella – yes; Vice-Mayor Smith – yes. 215 
 216 
B.  Final Millage Rate and Budget for Fiscal Year 2024/2025. – Mayor Paritsky requested 217 
Resolution 2024-16 and Ordinance 2024-05 be read by title only.  218 
 219 
 i. RESOLUTION 2024-16. – Attorney Shepard read Resolution 2024-16 by title 220 
only. A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, VOLUSIA COUNTY, 221 
FLORIDA ADOPTING THE TENTATIVE MILLAGE RATE FOR THE LEVYING OF 222 
AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAXES FOR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES ON ALL TAXABLE 223 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE TOWN FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 224 
1, 2024 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2025; STATING THE PERCENTAGE BY 225 
WHICH THE MILLAGE TO BE LEVIED IS ABOVE OR BELOW THE ROLLED BACK 226 
RATE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTING 227 
RESOLUTIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  228 
 229 



 

   
Town Council   September 19, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes   Page 6 of 10 

 ii. ORDINANCE 2024-05. Attorney Shepard read Ordinance 2024-05 by title only. 230 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA INCORPORATING 231 
THE FINAL AUDITED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 WHICH BEGAN ON 232 
OCTOBER 1, 2022 AND ENDED ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2023; AMENDING THE BUDGET 233 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 WHICH BEGAN ON OCTOBER 1, 2023 AND ENDS ON 234 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024; ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 235 
WHICH WILL BEGIN ON OCTOBER 1, 2024 AND ENDS ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2025; 236 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTING 237 
ORDINANCES; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 238 
 239 
Mr. Disher explained that the final budget being presented includes input from all departments, 240 
recommendations from two advisory boards, the public, and direction from the Town Council. He 241 
provided a synopsis on the discussions held during previous hearings, workshops, and advisory 242 
board meetings. He further explained that during the first budget hearing on September 4, 2024, 243 
the Town Council approved the proposed budget ordinance on first reading, subject to the removal 244 
of two new leased vehicles that had been proposed. Since then, the budget has been revised to 245 
exclude the two new leased vehicles, which has reduced the budget by approximately $26,000. 246 
This reduction lowered the final millage rate to 6.4559, which is a 11.24% increase above the 247 
rolled-back rate. Councilmember White raised concerns including the proposed new golf cart, the 248 
fire hose replacement, utility box wraps, and maintenance costs for the new fire apparatus. Chief 249 
Scales clarified the maintenance costs for the new fire apparatus would be offset by the reduced 250 
maintenance costs for the old fire truck once it is placed in reserve. Discussion ensued regarding 251 
maintenance schedules for the fire apparatus.  252 
 253 
Mayor Paritsky opened public participation. Mr. Steve Field, 6 Mar Azul, raised questions 254 
regarding the ambulance usage and services. Mr. Ryan McConaughey, 66 Seawinds Circle, stated 255 
the most-beneficial equipment in the ambulance is the power-lift stretcher. Mr. Shannon White, 256 
39 Coastal Oaks, expressed his opposition to the golf cart. Chief Glazier explained the usage of 257 
the Citizen’s Watch vehicle, the budget assembly process for his department, and the anticipated 258 
utilization of the golf cart. Mr. Disher stated that if the Council decides to withdraw the golf cart 259 
from the FY 24/25 budget, the final millage would be 6.4402, which is a 10.97% increase above 260 
the rolled-back rate. Ms. Bonnie Carney, 86 Rains Court, commented on items such as the golf 261 
cart, power-lift stretcher, travel expenses, and tasers from the proposed FY 24/25 budget. Mr. John 262 
Carney, 86 Rains Court, referred to the ten-year budget comparison and emphasized the 263 
importance of prioritization. Mayor Paritsky closed public participation.  264 
 265 
Councilmember White expressed his concern that the maintenance expenses for the new fire 266 
apparatus may not have been included in the budget. He recommended selling the existing fire 267 
truck to make up the cost deficit.   268 
 269 
Councilmember Villanella moved to approve Resolution 2024-16 at the final millage rate of 270 
6.4402 mills; the motion died due to lack of second. 271 
 272 
Councilmember Milano moved to approve Resolution 2024-16 at the final millage rate of 6.4559 273 
mills; the motion was seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith. The motion PASSED 4-1, with the following 274 



 

   
Town Council   September 19, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes   Page 7 of 10 

vote: Councilmember Milano – yes; Vice-Mayor Smith – yes; Mayor Paritsky – yes; 275 
Councilmember White – no; Councilmember Villanella – yes. 276 
 277 
Councilmember Villanella moved to approve and adopt on second reading, Ordinance 2024-05 278 
as presented; the motion was seconded by Councilmember Milano. The motion PASSED 4-1, with 279 
the following vote: Councilmember Villanella – yes; Councilmember Milano – yes; Mayor 280 
Paritsky – yes; Councilmember White – no; Vice-Mayor Smith – yes. 281 
 282 
11. ORDINANCES (FIRST READING) AND RESOLUTIONS:  283 
 284 

A.  Resolution 2024-17. Attorney Shepard read Resolution 2024-17 by title only. A 285 
RESOLUTION BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, 286 
VOLUSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, ACCEPTING THE RESULTS OF THE AUGUST 20, 287 
2024 ELECTION AS CANVASSED BY THE VOLUSIA COUNTY CANVASSING 288 
BOARD; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. – Ms. Cherbano explained the results 289 
of the election held on August 20, 2024. Councilmember Milano was re-elected to Seat #2 and 290 
Councilmember Villanella was re-elected to Seat #4. Mayor Paritsky opened public participation 291 
– hearing none, Mayor Paritsky closed public participation.  292 
 293 
Councilmember Villanella moved to approve Resolution 2024-17, as presented; seconded by 294 
Councilmember Milano. The motion PASSED, 5-0 with the following vote: Councilmember 295 
Villanella – yes; Councilmember Milano – yes; Mayor Paritsky – yes; Councilmember White – 296 
yes; Vice-Mayor Smith – yes. 297 
 298 

B.  Resolution 2024-18. Attorney Shepard read Resolution 2024-18 by title only. A 299 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, 300 
VOLUSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING A SUPPLEMENTAL 301 
APPROPRIATION TO THE TOWN’S BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024; 302 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 303 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. – Chief Scales explained the appropriation request 304 
is for the reallocation of funds for the repairs to the pilings at the Ponce Preserve boardwalk, 305 
Timucuan Oaks boardwalk, and the docks at the Ponce Inlet boat ramp. He stated the funds came 306 
from additional building permit revenue received this fiscal year. Councilmember White requested 307 
clarification on whether the Ponce Preserve boardwalk was recently repaired; Chief Scales 308 
explained the decking was recently repaired, but these funds are for underwater repair to the 309 
pilings. Mayor Paritsky opened public participation – hearing none, Mayor Paritsky closed public 310 
participation.  311 
 312 
Councilmember Milano moved to approve Resolution 2024-18, authorizing the supplemental 313 
appropriation of $125,000 from the General Fund excess revenue in building permits to fund the 314 
necessary piling repairs at the Ponce Preserve boardwalk, Timucuan Oaks boardwalk, and the 315 
docks at the Ponce Inlet boat ramp; seconded by Councilmember Villanella. The motion PASSED, 316 
5-0 with the following vote: Councilmember Milano – yes; Councilmember Villanella – yes; Mayor 317 
Paritsky – yes; Councilmember White – yes; Vice-Mayor Smith – yes. 318 
 319 

C.  Purchase of 75’ quint fire apparatus.  (Moved to item 8-A) 320 



Town Council  September 19, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 10 

321 
i. Request to purchase a 75’ quint apparatus from Matheny Fire and322 

 Emergency in the amount of $1,263,000. – 323 
324 

ii. Acceptance of proposal from TD Equipment Finance, Inc. for the325 
financing of the 75’ quint fire apparatus. 326 

327 
iii. Resolution 2024-19 – Authorizing the execution and delivery of a lease- 328 

purchase agreement with TD Equipment Finance, Inc. for the acquisition, financing, leasing, 329 
and purchase of a 75’ quint fire apparatus from Matheny Fire and Emergency. 330 

331 
12. OLD BUSINESS: None.332 

333 
13. NEW BUSINESS:334 

335 
A. Interlocal Agreement with Volusia County to maintain the current process for336 

payment of Volusia County transportation impact fees on County-maintained roads within 337 
the Town of Ponce Inlet. – Mr. Lear explained this item comes after state law was amended earlier 338 
in the year requiring that municipalities that issue building permits also collect a transportation 339 
impact fee for county roads, unless there is an interlocal agreement in place to allow the county to 340 
collect the impact fees directly. He provided more details on the impact fees and how Volusia 341 
County currently collects them. The interlocal agreement maintains the existing system between 342 
the Town and County for the calculation and collection of county-wide thoroughfare road impact 343 
fees. Mayor Paritsky opened public comment – hearing none, Mayor Paritsky closed public 344 
participation. 345 

346 
Councilmember Milano moved to approve the Interlocal Agreement as presented to maintain the 347 
current process for County Transportation Impact fee collection and remittance; seconded by 348 
Councilmember Villanella; The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 349 

350 
B. Acceptance of bid from Sea Level Development, LLC for the Ponce Inlet351 

Stormwater Improvements Project, Bid No. 2024-01 – Chief Scales stated only one bid was 352 
received for Bid No. 2024-01, Stormwater Improvements Project. Sea Level Development, LLC. 353 
was determined to be the lowest responsible bidder and staff has met with them to discuss the 354 
projects and ensure everyone is in agreement. Staff is confident they will appropriately complete 355 
the project. Mayor Paritsky opened public comment – hearing none, Mayor Paritsky closed public 356 
participation.  357 

358 
Councilmember Milano made a motion to award the contract for Ponce Inlet Stormwater Project, 359 
Bid No. 2024-01, to Sea Level Development, LLC. in the total project amount of $264,142; 360 
seconded by Councilmember Villanella. The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 361 

362 
14. FROM THE TOWN COUNCIL:363 

364 
A. Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5 – Vice-Mayor Smith thanked residents for their365 

insightful questions throughout the meeting and budget process.  366 



 

   
Town Council   September 19, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes   Page 9 of 10 

 367 
 B. Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 – Councilmember Villanella commended 368 
staff and residents on their work and stated he has had other entities commend the Town on the 369 
decorum of meetings.   370 
 371 
 C. Councilmember White, Seat #3 – Councilmember White congratulated Mayor 372 
Paritsky on her appointment to the Florida League of Cities Utilities, Natural Resources, and 373 
Public Works committee as Vice-Chair. He provided information on the webinars hosted by the 374 
Florida League of Cities and elaborated on the benefit they provide. He concluded by thanking the 375 
residents for their input and commented on the importance of community engagement with the 376 
Council.    377 
 378 
 D. Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 – Councilmember Milano thanked the staff for 379 
their work on the budget. He provided an update to the First Step Shelter and thanked the Town 380 
for supporting the organization. 381 
 382 
 E. Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 – Mayor Paritsky provided information obtained from 383 
the last Volusia County Elected Officials Roundtable meeting she attended and brought everyone’s 384 
attention to the Community Health Update and Information which was discussed. She provided a 385 
brief update to the resident registration program on beach parking. She stated a representative from 386 
the Coastal Division of Volusia County will be coming to Ponce Inlet at a future date and will be 387 
available to answer more questions. Mayor Paritsky explained her role as newly elected Vice-388 
Chair of the Florida League of Cities Utilities, Natural Resources, and Public Works committee, 389 
and further elaborated on the matters the committee discusses.   390 
 391 
15. FROM THE TOWN MANAGER – Mr. Disher spoke on the importance of public 392 
participation in the annual budget process and thanked Councilmembers for their support. He 393 
stated there will be a special Town Council meeting on September 26, 2024 to ratify the 394 
employment offer of Public Works Director to Mr. Steven Wargo. He further provided an update 395 
on town-wide personnel, explained the police department will be hosting a free seminar on 396 
Avoiding Frauds & Scams, and provided an update on the South Peninsula Septic-to-Sewer 397 
project. The Town recently received $16,424.49 from FEMA reimbursements due to Hurricane 398 
Ian, and he stated the final projected reimbursement is estimated around $1,800.   399 
 400 
16. FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY – Attorney Shepard requested clarification on an 401 
upcoming meeting.  402 
 403 
17. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (on items 14 – 16 only) – Mayor Paritsky opened public 404 
participation – Mr. Robert Bullard, 4802 South Peninsula Drive, provided comments regarding 405 
homestead exemptions. Ms. Milagros Gerena, 4625 Riversedge Village Lane, and Mr. Jeffrey 406 
Wilner, 4670 Links Village Drive, thanked the Council for its support of the Harbour Village cost-407 
participation request for their dune walkover, and provided some updates on their next steps. 408 
Mayor Paritsky closed public participation.    409 
 410 
18. ADJOURNMENT – Mayor Paritsky adjourned the meeting at 9:12 P.M. 411 
 412 

file://TPIFS/Shared/Presentations/2024/Town%20Council/09-19-2024/14-E/Volusia%20County%20Elected%20Officials%20Roundtable%20Agenda%20Packet.pdf


 

   
Town Council   September 19, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes   Page 10 of 10 

Respectfully submitted by: 413 
 414 
Draft               415 
Kim Cherbano, CMC, Town Clerk 416 
Prepared by: Stephanie Gjessing, Assistant Deputy Clerk 417 
 418 
Attachment(s): Fire Apparatus Presentation by Chief Scales 419 
   Volusia County Elected Officials Roundtable Agenda – 9/9/2024 420 



Town Council September 26, 2024 
Special Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 2 

Town of Ponce Inlet 
Town Council 

Special Meeting Minutes 
September 26, 2024 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Pursuant to proper notice, Mayor Paritsky called the meeting to 1 
order at 10:00 a.m. in the Council Chambers at 4300 South Atlantic Avenue, Ponce Inlet, Florida. 2 

3 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Mayor Paritsky led the Pledge of Allegiance. 4 

5 
3. ROLL CALL: 6 

Town Council: 7 
Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 8 
Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 – Absent 9 
Councilmember White, Seat #3 10 
Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 11 
Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5 12 

13 
Staff Members Present: 14 
Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk 15 
Mr. Christensen, Investigator 16 
Mr. Disher, Town Manager 17 
Ms. Dowling, HR Coordinator 18 
Mr. Dunlap, Assistant Public Works Manager 19 
Ms. Gjessing, Assistant Deputy Clerk 20 
Chief Glazier, Police Department 21 
Ms. Hall, Assistant Finance Director 22 
Ms. Hugler, Fire Department Office Manager/PIO 23 
Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 24 
Ms. McColl, Finance Director 25 
Mr. Okum, IT Director 26 
Chief Scales, Public Safety Director 27 
Ms. Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk 28 

29 
4. Ratification of employment offer for public works director position. – Mr. Disher 30 
introduced Mr. Steven Wargo and provided information on his role as Public Works Director. He 31 
explained Mr. Wargo’s educational and professional history and described the selection process 32 
behind the consideration of employment. Mr. Disher stated he appreciated Mr. Wargo’s attitude, 33 
commitment to safety, and collaboration with his employees. Mayor Paritsky thanked Mr. Steve 34 
Dunlap for his term as Acting Public Works Director and invited Mr. Wargo to introduce himself, 35 
which he did, providing a brief personal background. Councilmember Villanella stated Mr. Wargo 36 
had a well-rounded career. Councilmember White mentioned the connection between residents 37 
and staff and asked what input Mr. Wargo will take from his employees. Mr. Wargo explained he 38 
encourages input from employees and residents, and he values an open-door policy. He stated he 39 

Item 7-B



 

Town Council  September 26, 2024 
Special Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 2 

wants to understand the town and there is no one better to assist him in doing so than the residents 40 
and his employees. Councilmember White asked that Mr. Wargo take charge to reduce the volume 41 
of staff turnover throughout the last couple of years. Vice-Mayor Smith commended Mr. Wargo 42 
on his resume and stated he looks forward to their future discussions. Mayor Paritsky applauded 43 
Mr. Wargo on his certifications and references and welcomed Mr. Wargo to the Town.  44 
 45 
Councilmember Villanella moved to ratify the employment offer of Public Works Director to 46 
Steven Wargo on the terms set forth in the September 17, 2024 offer of employment letter; the 47 
motion was seconded by Councilmember White. The motion PASSED 4-0, with the following vote: 48 
Councilmember Villanella – yes; Councilmember White – yes; Mayor Paritsky – yes; Vice-Mayor 49 
Smith – yes. 50 
 51 
5. ADJOURNMENT – With no further business, Mayor Paritsky adjourned the meeting at 52 
10:14 AM. 53 
 54 
Respectfully submitted by: 55 
 56 
DRAFT             57 
Kim Cherbano, CMC / Town Clerk 58 
Prepared by: Stephanie Gjessing, Assistant Deputy Clerk 59 
 60 
Attachment(s): None.  61 



MEMORANDUM 
Office of the Public Safety Director 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
From: Daniel Scales, Public Safety Director 
Date: October 9, 2024 
Subject: Request to approve piggyback contracts through the City of Edgewater for 

emergency debris monitoring services 

MEETING DATE:  October 17, 2024 

The Town’s debris monitoring consultant, Witt O’Briens, no longer performs debris monitoring 
services; however, the City of Edgewater has three (3) vendors under contract to provide this 
service. Emergency debris monitoring is required by FEMA as a condition for reimbursement after 
a federally declared disaster. This is intended to verify that debris operations are eligible for 
reimbursement, costs are reasonable, contract and procurement processes are appropriate, 
quantification of the debris is accurate, and the tracking of the debris to its final disposition is 
recorded and in compliance with all FEMA guidelines and regulatory requirements. Failure to 
properly monitor debris removal operations may jeopardize FEMA funding. 

The City has agreed to allow the Town to piggyback off their contracts they have in place. Attached 
are Edgewater’s executed agreements with their top three (3) ranked firms listed below from their 
Request for Proposals (RFP 23-ES-10): 

• Goodwyn Mills Cawood (GMC), as successor and assign to Witt O’Briens
• Tetra Tech, Inc.
• Thompson Consulting Services, LLC

The terms of the above agreements for these contracts are from 11/7/23 through 11/6/26, with 
option for two additional one-year renewals. The City of Edgewater can choose which debris 
monitoring firm to use, for each activation, during the contract period. The decision is based on 
availability and pricing of each hauler. The Town would be able to do the same provided the firms 
agree to allow us to piggyback. 

The City of Edgewater has approved our request to a piggyback of Edgewater’s debris monitoring 
contracts (see letter attached). Staff has been in contact with all three (vendors) and the one that 
currently has availability for Hurricane Milton is Thompson Consulting Services, LLC.  

Item 7-C



Staff recommends that the Town Council approve a piggyback of Edgewater’s debris monitoring 
contracts for use on Hurricane Milton as needed, and pending declaration of any future major 
events (local disasters). 

Attachments: 
City of Edgewater Debris Monitoring Services Agreements 
City of Edgewater approval letter 



Item 7C - 
Attachment 1





















Item 7C - 
Attachment 2





















Item 7C - 
Attachment 3























Item 7C - 
Attachment 4



 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic: Financing for the 75’ Quint Fire Apparatus. 
 

i. Acceptance of Capital Finance Bid Proposal from Cogent 
Leasing and Financing, Inc. for the 75’ Quint Fire Apparatus. 

 
ii. Approval of Resolution 2024-20 Authorizing the Town 

Manager to Proceed with Entering into a Lease-Purchase 
Finance Agreement. 
 

 
Summary:   Please see attached staff report and supporting 

documents. 
 
Suggested motion: 
 

i.  To approve the acceptance of the capital finance bid proposal 
from Cogent Leasing and Financing, Inc. for the 75’ Quint Fire 
Apparatus. 

 
ii. To approve Resolution 2024-20, authorizing the Town 

Manager to Proceed with Entering into a Lease-Purchase 
Finance Agreement. 

 
Requested by:   Chief Scales, Public Safety Director 
 
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 10/17/2024 

Agenda Item:   8-A 



 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
Office of the Public Safety Director 

 
The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 

ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 
 
To:  Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager  
From:  Daniel Scales, Public Safety Director  
Date:  October 9, 2024 
Subject: Acceptance of Capital Finance Bid Proposal from Cogent Leasing and Financing, 

Inc. for Quint Fire Apparatus and Approval of Resolution 2024-20 Authorizing the 
Town Manager to Proceed with Entering into a Lease-Purchase Finance Agreement 

 

MEETING DATE:  October 17, 2024 
 

 1 
BACKGROUND: 2 
The Fire Department requires a new fire apparatus to enhance operational capabilities and maintain 3 
our current level of service. In August, a Request for Proposals (RFP) for fire apparatus capital 4 
financing was issued to secure the most favorable terms for acquiring a "quint" fire apparatus with 5 
a principal purchase amount of $1,263,000 for a 10-year term. Following a reduction in interest 6 
rates by the Federal Reserve, the Town Council rejected the initial three bids at its meeting on 7 
September 19, 2024, and directed Staff to re-issue the RFP with 7- and 10-year term options. Four 8 
proposals were subsequently received by the new October 7, 2024 bid deadline, specifically from 9 
Cogent Leasing and Financing, Inc., TD Equipment Finance Inc., First American Equipment 10 
Finance, and Bank Funding, LLC.  11 

 12 
PROPOSALS REVIEWED: 13 
The new proposals have been thoroughly reviewed and evaluated by staff, as follows: 14 

Vendor Interest 
Rate 

Term Annual 
Payment 

Initial 
Payment 

Date 

Total 
Interest 

Total 
Payment 

Cogent Leasing and 
Financing, Inc. 

4.18% 10 years $157,139.79 11-04-25 $308,197.90 $1,571,397.90 

 3.92% 7 years $209,839.49 11-04-25 $205,676.43 $1,468,876.43 
Bank Funding, LLC 4.40% 10 years $158,857.76 11-01-25 $325,377.60 $1,588,577.60 
 4.22% 7 years $212,175,60 11-01-25 $203,584.32 $1,485,229.20 
First American 
Equipment Finance 

Did not 
Provide 

10 years N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 4.066% 7 years $210,941.21 10-31-25 $213,588.47 $1,476,588.47 
TD Equipment 
Finance, Inc. 

4.22% 10 months $1,263,000.00 11-30-24 $24,706.00 $1,287,706.00 

 4.20% 7 months $1,263,000.00 11-30-24 $17,891.15 $1,280,891.15 
 15 



Note that two proposals received did not meeting the RFP parameters. The proposal from TD 16 
Equipment Finance Inc. contained discrepancies over the length of the term, with the proposal 17 
exhibit providing 7- and 10-year terms, but the amortization schedule providing only 7 and 10 18 
months. The terms offered did not meet the RFP conditions, so the proposal from TD Equipment 19 
Finance Inc. is not included for consideration.   20 
 21 
First American Equipment Finance only provided a 7-year term, but not a 10-year terms. The 22 
submittal from First American Equipment Finance therefore did not meet the RFP conditions, so 23 
its proposal is not included for consideration.   24 
 25 
ANALYSIS: 26 
Of the two qualified bids, Cogent Leasing and Financing, Inc. offers the most competitive interest 27 
rate at 4.18% for 10 years, and 3.92% for 7 years. Additionally, Cogent Leasing and Financing, 28 
Inc. provides favorable payment terms, with the lowest annual payment of the three, and the first 29 
installment not due until November 4, 2025. Furthermore, this bank offers three different payment 30 
options for each of the two terms, including annual, semi-annual, and quarterly payments. The 31 
deferment of the first installment payment until November 4, 2025, allows for better fiscal 32 
planning and budget allocation. 33 
 34 
Selecting Cogent Leasing and Financing, Inc. for this capital lease-purchase will result in lower 35 
total interest paid over the 7 or 10-year terms compared to the other proposal, providing long-term 36 
savings to the Town. The lower interest rate and deferred payment schedule aligns with the Town’s 37 
financial planning and makes the proposal from Cogent Leasing and Financing, Inc. the most 38 
financially advantageous option.  39 
 40 
ALTERNATIVES: 41 
• Accept the proposal from Bank Funding, LLC at 4.22% interest for a 7-year term or 4.40% 42 

interest for a 10-year term. 43 
• Decline all proposals and seek alternative financing options. 44 

 45 
RECOMMENDATION: 46 
It is recommended that the Town Council accept the capital lease-purchase proposal from Cogent 47 
Leasing and Financing, Inc. for the acquisition of the new fire apparatus with a principal amount 48 
of $1,263,000, at either:  49 
 50 

1. A 7-year term at a 3.92% interest rate, with annual payments of $209,839.49 and a total 51 
cost of $1,468,876.43;  52 
 53 
OR  54 
 55 

2. A 10-year term at a 4.18% interest rate, with annual payments of $157,139.79 and a total 56 
cost of $1,571,397.90.  57 

 58 
Staff is also recommending that the Town Council approve Resolution 2024-20 authorizing the 59 
Town Manager to enter into a capital finance agreement with Cogent Leasing and Financing, Inc. 60 
pursuant to the terms selected above. Approving this capital lease will ensure the timely acquisition 61 
of critical fire apparatus while minimizing the financial impact on the Town. The draft Agreement 62 
and related Financing Documents are attached. 63 



Attachment 1



























Attachment 2



















 
 

Resolution 2024-20 
Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION 2024-20 

A RESOLUTION OF TOWN OF PONCE INLET, VOLUSIA 
COUNTY FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 
AND DELIVERY OF A LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
WITH COGENT LEASING AND FINANCING, INC., , WITH 
RESPECT TO THE ACQUISITION, FINANCING, LEASING, 
AND PURCHASE OF A 75’ QUINT FIRE APPARATUS; 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF 
DOCUMENTS REQUIRED IN CONNECTION 
THEREWITH; AUTHORIZING ALL OTHER ACTIONS 
NECESSARY TO THE CONSUMMATION OF THE 
TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS 
RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Ponce Inlet, a municipal corporation duly organized and existing 
as a political subdivision of the State of Florida (“Lessee”), is authorized by the laws of the State of 
Florida to purchase, acquire, and lease personal property for the benefit of Lessee and to enter into 
contracts with respect thereto; and  

 WHEREAS, Lessee desires to acquire, finance, lease, and purchase a 75’ Quint fire apparatus 
with a principal cost not to exceed $1,263,000, constituting personal property necessary for Lessee 
to perform essential governmental functions (the “Equipment”); and 

 WHEREAS, Lessee proposes to enter into that certain Lease-Purchase Agreement (the 
“Agreement”), with Cogent Leasing and Financing, Inc. (“Lessor”), the form of which has been 
available for review by the governing body of Lessee prior to this meeting; and 

 WHEREAS, Lessee has taken the necessary steps, including those relating to any applicable 
legal bidding requirements, to arrange for the acquisition of the Equipment; and 

 WHEREAS, the governing body of Lessee deems it for the benefit of Lessee and for the 
efficient and effective administration thereof to enter into the Financing Documents and any other 
documentation necessary, convenient or appropriate for the purpose of the financing the Equipment 
on the terms and conditions described therein; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 SECTION 1. Lessee is hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Agreement with principal 
components of rental payments in an aggregate amount not to exceed $1,263,000. 

SECTION 2. The Financing Documents and the acquisition and financing of the Equipment 
under the terms and conditions as described in the Financing Documents are hereby approved.  The 
Town Manager or designee of Lessee is authorized to execute, acknowledge, and deliver the 
Financing Documents and any and all instruments, documents and certificates which may be 



 
 

Resolution 2024-20 
Page 2 of 3 

required by or provided for in the Financing Documents or as may otherwise be required for or 
necessary, convenient or appropriate to the financing described in this resolution together with any 
changes, insertions and omissions therein as may be approved by the officer(s) who execute the 
Financing Documents, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by such execution and delivery of 
the Financing Documents. The Town Manager or designee of Lessee is authorized to affix the official 
seal of Lessee to the Financing Documents and attest the same. 

 SECTION 3. The proper officers of Lessee are authorized and directed to execute and deliver 
any and all papers, instruments, opinions, certificates, affidavits and other documents and to do or 
cause to be done any and all other acts and things as necessary or proper for carrying out this resolution 
and the Financing Documents. 

 SECTION 4. Pursuant to Section 265(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended (the “Code”), Lessee hereby specifically designates the Agreement as a “qualified tax-
exempt obligation” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. 

 SECTION 5. Nothing contained in this resolution, the Agreement nor any other instrument 
shall be construed with respect to Lessee as incurring a pecuniary liability or charge upon the general 
credit of Lessee or against its taxing power, nor shall the breach of any agreement contained in this 
resolution, the Agreement or any other instrument or document executed in connection therewith 
impose any pecuniary liability upon Lessee or any charge upon its general credit or against its taxing 
power, except to the extent that the rental payments payable under the Agreement are special limited 
obligations of Lessee as provided in the Agreement.  

 SECTION 6. Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution 
shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of 
such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this 
Resolution. 

 SECTION 7. Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption. 

It was moved by ____________ and seconded by ____________ that said Resolution be 
adopted. A roll call vote of the Town Council on said motion resulted as follows: 

Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1     

   Councilmember Milano, Seat #2    

   Councilmember White, Seat #3     

   Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4    

   Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5     

Passed this 17th day of October 2024. 



 
 

Resolution 2024-20 
Page 3 of 3 

       
      Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
 
      
     ________________________________  
      Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
       
 
______________________________ 
Kim Cherbano, CMC 
Town Clerk 



DRAFT

 

 

MASTER LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

This Master Lease Purchase Agreement (this “Agreement”), dated as of [DATE], is made and 
entered into by and between [LESSOR] (together with its successors and assigns, “Lessor”), and 
[LESSEE], a political subdivision of the State of [State] (“Lessee”). 

 In consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. LEASE OF EQUIPMENT; FUNDING  

1.1. Lease; Possession and Use.  Lessor hereby agrees to sell, transfer and lease to Lessee, 
and Lessee hereby agrees to acquire, purchase and lease from Lessor the property described in each 
Lease Schedule (defined herein) executed and delivered by Lessor and Lessee, upon the terms and 
conditions set forth herein, together with all attachments, additions, accessions, parts, repairs, 
improvements, replacements and substitutions thereto (the “Equipment”).  Each Lease (defined herein) 
executed and delivered by Lessor and Lessee pursuant to this Agreement shall constitute a separate and 
independent lease and installment purchase of the Equipment described therein.  This Agreement is not a 
commitment by Lessor to enter into any Lease and nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to 
impose any obligation upon Lessor to enter into any proposed Lease.  The decision whether Lessor 
enters into any Lease is within Lessor’s sole discretion.  As used herein, (i) “Lease Schedule” means a 
schedule substantially in the form attached as Exhibit A to this Agreement, together with all addenda, 
riders, attachments, certificates and exhibits thereto, as the same may from time to time be amended, 
modified or supplemented, and (ii) “Lease” means a Lease Schedule each together with this Agreement 
the terms and conditions of which are incorporated therein. 

1.2. Funding.  Unless otherwise provided in the applicable Lease Schedule, in order to 
provide financing to pay the costs to acquire and install the Equipment and to pay certain costs related to 
the execution and delivery of the Lease Documents (defined herein) as set forth in the applicable Lease 
Schedule (the “Purchase Price”), Lessor and Lessee shall execute and deliver an escrow agreement 
relating to such Schedule in form and substance and with an escrow agent satisfactory to Lessor (an 
“Escrow Agreement”).  If all conditions set forth in Section 1.3 have been satisfied in full or waived, then 
Lessor will deposit or cause to be deposited into an escrow fund under the related Escrow Agreement, if 
applicable, or pay to Lessee an amount equal to the Purchase Price for the Equipment to be financed 
under the related Lease Schedule. 

1.3. Funding Requirements.  The funding of the Purchase Price and the performance by 
Lessor of any of its obligations pursuant to any Lease, are subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the 
following: 

(a) Lessor has received all of the following documents, which shall be reasonably 
satisfactory, in form and substance, to Lessor:  (1) evidence of insurance coverage or self-insurance as 
required by the Lease; (2) an opinion of Lessee’s counsel and/or bond counsel to Lessee with respect to 
certain matters related to the Lease; (3) waivers of third party holders of interests in the real property 
where the Equipment will be located, as Lessor may deem necessary; (4) copies of resolutions by 
Lessee’s governing body, duly authorizing the Lease and the Escrow Agreement and incumbency 
certificates for the person(s) executing the Lease and the Escrow Agreement; (5) such documents and 
certificates as Lessor may request relating to federal tax-exemption of interest payable under the Lease, 
including (without limitation) IRS Form 8038-G or 8038-GC and evidence of the adoption of a 
reimbursement resolution or other official action in the event that Lessee is to be reimbursed for 
expenditures that it has paid more than 60 days prior to the funding of the Purchase Price; (6) if all or a 
portion of the Purchase Price will be paid to Lessee (or vendor(s) or supplier(s) of the Equipment on 
behalf of Lessee), an acceptance certificate for the Equipment (substantially in the form attached as 
Exhibit B to this Agreement)(an “Acceptance Certificate”); and (7) such other documents and information 
previously identified by Lessor or otherwise reasonably requested by Lessor. 



DRAFT

 

2 

(b) Lessee has executed and delivered to Lessor the Lease Schedule, its related Payment 
Schedule and the related Escrow Agreement (if applicable);  

(c) no Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing under any Lease;  

(d) no material adverse change shall have occurred in the financial condition of Lessee;  

(e) the Equipment is reasonably satisfactory to Lessor and is free and clear of any Liens 
(defined herein) other than the respective rights of Lessor and Lessee as herein provided; and 

(f) all representations of Lessee in the Lease remain true, accurate and complete. 

1.4. Delivery, Installation and Acceptance of Equipment.  Lessee shall order each Equipment, 
shall cause the Equipment to be delivered and installed at the locations specified under the applicable 
Lease Schedule and shall pay all taxes, delivery costs and installation costs, if any, in connection 
therewith.  If the Purchase Price is deposited under an Escrow Agreement for the acquisition of the 
Equipment, such funds shall be disbursed as provided therein.  The insufficiency of proceeds of any 
Lease to pay all costs of the Equipment subject thereto shall not affect Lessee’s obligations under this 
Section.  When the Equipment described in such Lease Schedule is delivered, installed and accepted, 
Lessee shall promptly execute and deliver to Lessor an Acceptance Certificate for the Equipment. 

2. TERM 

2.1. Term.  The term of each Lease (the “Lease Term”) shall commence on the Lease Date 
set forth in the applicable Lease Schedule and shall continue until the end of the fiscal year of Lessee in 
effect at such Lease Date (the “Original Term”); provided that the Lease Term for each Lease may be 
continued, solely at the option of Lessee, at the end of the Original Term or any renewal term of each 
Lease, each having a duration of one year and a term coextensive with Lessee’s fiscal year or such 
earlier date specified in the Lease (each a “Renewal Term”), as specified in the Lease Schedule 
applicable thereto up to the maximum Lease Term set forth in such Lease.  At the end of the Original 
Term and at the end of each Renewal Term until the maximum Lease Term has been completed, Lessee 
shall be deemed to have exercised its option to continue each Lease for the next Renewal Term, unless 
sooner terminated pursuant to the Lease. 

3. RENTAL PAYMENTS 

3.1. Rental Payments.  Lessee agrees to pay the rent payments (“Rental Payments”) in the 
amounts and on the dates (each a “Payment Date”) as specified in the Payment Schedule attached to 
each Lease Schedule.  A portion of each Rental Payment is paid as interest as specified in the Payment 
Schedule for each Lease.  All Rental Payments shall be paid to Lessor, at such places as Lessor may 
from time to time designate by written notice to Lessee.  Lessee shall pay the Rental Payments with 
lawful money of the United States of America from moneys legally available therefor. 

3.2. Current Expense.  The obligations of Lessee under this Agreement and all Lease 
Schedules, including its obligation to pay the Rental Payments due in any fiscal year shall constitute a 
current expense of Lessee for such fiscal year and shall not constitute an indebtedness of Lessee within 
the meaning of the Constitution and laws of the State of [STATE] (the “State”).  THE RENTAL 
PAYMENTS AND ANY OTHER AMOUNTS PAYABLE HEREUNDER ARE TO BE MADE ONLY FROM 
LESSEE’S LEGALLY AVAILABLE REVENUES APPROPRIATED ON AN ANNUAL BASIS, AND NONE 
OF LESSEE, THE STATE, OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OR AGENCY THEREOF SHALL BE 
OBLIGATED TO PAY ANY SUMS DUE UNDER A LEASE FROM THE COMPELLED LEVY OF AD 
VALOREM OR OTHER TAXES EXCEPT FROM THOSE LEGALLY AVAILABLE REVENUES 
APPROPRIATED BY LESSEE ON AN ANNUAL BASIS.  Nothing herein shall constitute a pledge by 
Lessee of the full faith and credit or taxing power of the Lessee, the State or any political subdivision or 



DRAFT

 

3 

agency thereof.  The person or entity in charge of preparing Lessee’s budget will include in the budget 
request for each fiscal year the Rental Payments to become due during such fiscal year, and will use all 
reasonable and lawful means available to secure the appropriation of money for such fiscal year sufficient 
to pay all Rental Payments coming due therein; provided that Lessee’s governing body retains the 
authority to approve or reject such budget request. Lessor acknowledges that appropriation for Rental 
Payments and any other amounts payable hereunder is a governmental function which Lessee cannot 
contractually commit itself in advance to perform.  Without committing itself to do so, Lessee reasonably 
believes that moneys in an amount sufficient to make all Rental Payments can and will lawfully be 
appropriated and made available to permit Lessee’s continued utilization of the Equipment in the 
performance of its essential functions during the applicable Lease Term. 

3.3. Unconditional Rental Payments.  Subject to Section 3.4 hereof, (a) Lessee’s obligation to 
make Rental Payments and any other payments hereunder shall be absolute and unconditional; (b) 
Lessee shall make such payments when due and shall not withhold any of these payments pending final 
resolution of any disputes; (c) Lessee shall not assert any right of set-off or counterclaim against its 
obligation to make these payments; (d) Lessee’s obligation to make Rental Payments or other payments 
shall not be abated through accident, unforeseen circumstances, failure of the Equipment to perform as 
desired, damage or destruction to the Equipment, loss of possession of the Equipment or obsolescence 
of the Equipment; and (e) Lessee shall be obligated to continue to make payments required of it by this 
Agreement if title to, or temporary use of, the Equipment or any part thereof shall be taken under exercise 
of the power of eminent domain. 

3.4. Nonappropriation.  If during the then current fiscal year of Lessee, sufficient funds are not 
appropriated to make Rental Payments required under a Lease for the following fiscal year (an “Event of 
Nonappropriation”), Lessee shall be deemed not to have renewed such Lease for the following fiscal 
year, and the Lease shall terminate at the end of the then current fiscal year, and Lessee shall not be 
obligated to make Rental Payments under the Lease beyond the then current fiscal year for which funds 
have been appropriated.  Upon an Event of Nonappropriation, Lessee shall return the Equipment subject 
to the Lease to Lessor in accordance with the requirements of Section 11.3.  Lessee shall notify Lessor in 
writing no later than 30 days following an Event of Nonappropriation, but failure to provide such notice 
shall not operate to extend the Lease Term.  If Lessee fails to return the applicable Equipment or 
otherwise comply with Section 11.3, the termination shall nevertheless be effective, but Lessee shall be 
responsible for the payment of an amount equal to the Rental Payments that would thereafter have come 
due if the Lease had not been terminated and which are attributable to the number of days after which 
Lessee fails to comply with Lessor’s instructions and for any other loss suffered by Lessor as a result of 
Lessee’s failure to take such actions as required.  In addition, Lessor may, by written instructions to any 
escrow agent who is holding proceeds of the Lease, instruct such escrow agent to release all such 
proceeds and any earnings thereon to Lessor. 

3.5. Security Interest.  As security for Lessee’s obligations to pay all Rental Payments and all 
other amounts due and payable under each Lease and to perform and observe all covenants, 
agreements and conditions (direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, due or to become due or existing or 
hereafter arising) of Lessee under such Lease, Lessee hereby grants to Lessor a first priority, security 
interest in any and all of the Equipment (now existing or hereafter acquired) under each Lease, moneys 
and investments held from time to time in the escrow fund under each Escrow Agreement and any and all 
proceeds of any of the foregoing.  Lessee agrees to execute and deliver to Lessor all necessary 
documents to evidence and perfect such security interest, including, without limitation, Uniform 
Commercial Code financing statements and any amendments thereto and certificates of title or 
certificates of origin (or applications thereof) noting Lessor’s interest thereon. 

3.6. Tax Covenants.   

(a) Lessee covenants and agrees that it will (i) complete and timely file an information 
reporting return with the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) in accordance with Section 149(e) of the 



DRAFT

 

4 

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”); (ii) not permit the Equipment to be directly or 
indirectly used for a private business use within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code including, without 
limitation, use by private persons or entities pursuant to contractual arrangements which do not satisfy 
IRS guidelines for permitted management contracts, as the same may be amended from time to time; (iii) 
invest and reinvest moneys on deposit in the any escrow fund related to each Lease from time to time in 
a manner that will not cause such Lease to be classified as an “arbitrage bond” within the meaning of 
Section 148(a) of the Code; (iv) rebate an amount equal to excess earnings in any such escrow fund to 
the federal government if required by, and in accordance with, Section 148(f) of the Code and make the 
determinations and maintain the records required by the Code; and (v) comply with all provisions and 
regulations applicable to establishing and maintaining the excludability of the interest component of the 
Rental Payments under each Lease from federal gross income pursuant to Section 103 of the Code. 

(b) If Lessor either (i) receives notice, in any form, from the IRS; or (ii) reasonably 
determines, based on an opinion of independent tax counsel selected by Lessor that Lessor may not 
exclude the interest component of any Rental Payment under a Lease from federal gross income, then 
Lessee shall pay to Lessor, within thirty (30) days after Lessor notifies Lessee of such determination, the 
amount which, with respect to Rental Payments previously paid and taking into account all penalties, 
fines, interest and additions to tax (including all federal, state and local taxes imposed on the interest 
component of all Rental Payments under the Lease due through the date of such event) that are imposed 
on Lessor as a result of the loss of the exclusion, will restore to Lessor the same after tax yield on the 
transaction evidenced by such Lease (assuming tax at the highest marginal corporate tax rate) that it 
would have realized had the exclusion not been lost.  Additionally, Lessee agrees that upon the 
occurrence of such an event, it shall pay additional rent to Lessor on each succeeding Rental Payment 
due date in such amount as will maintain such after tax yield to Lessor.  Lessor’s determination of the 
amount necessary to maintain its after-tax yield as provided in this subsection (b) shall be conclusive 
(absent manifest error).   

4. PURCHASE AND PREPAYMENT 

4.1. End of Lease Term.  Lessee shall have the option to purchase all of the Equipment under 
a Lease upon the expiration of the Lease Term and payment in full of all Rental Payments then due and 
all other amounts then owing under the Lease, and the payment of $1.00 to Lessor. 

4.2. Optional Prepayment.  Lessee shall have the option to prepay its obligations under any 
Lease in whole but not in part on any Payment Date as set forth in the applicable Payment Schedule, but 
only if and to the extent the Lease Schedule provides for such prepayment.  Lessee shall give written 
notice to Lessor of its intention to exercise its option not less than thirty (30) days prior to the Payment 
Date on which the option will be exercised and shall pay to Lessor not later than such Payment Date an 
amount equal to all Rental Payments and any other amounts then due or past due under such Lease, 
including the Rental Payment due on the Payment Date on which the option shall be effective, and the 
applicable Prepayment Price set forth in the applicable Payment Schedule (the “Prepayment Price”).   

4.3. Excess Proceeds.  Lessee’s obligations under a Lease shall be prepaid in part from the 
excess proceeds of the Lease on the terms set forth in any Escrow Agreement pursuant to which 
proceeds of the Lease are being held. 

4.4. Release of Lessor’s Interest.  Upon timely receipt, in collected funds, of all amounts 
required for the purchase of the Equipment subject to any Lease pursuant to Section 4.1 or the 
prepayment in whole of any Lease pursuant to Section 4.2, such Lease shall terminate, all of Lessor’s 
right, title and interest in and to the Equipment shall terminate, and Lessor shall deliver to Lessee all such 
documents and instruments as Lessee may reasonably request to evidence the termination of the Lease 
and Lessor’s interest in the Equipment, without warranty by or recourse to Lessor.  



DRAFT

 

5 

5. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. 

5.1. Representations and Warranties.  Lessee shall be deemed to make the following 
representations and warranties to Lessor with respect to each Lease, in each case as of the Lease Date 
for such Lease: 

(a) Lessee is a state or political subdivision of the State within the meaning of Section 103(c) 
of the Code, duly organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State, and is authorized 
under the Constitution and laws of the State to enter into this Agreement, the other Lease Documents and 
the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, and to perform all of its obligations under this 
Agreement and the other Lease Documents. 

(b) The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Lease Schedule have been duly 
authorized by all necessary action of Lessee’s governing body and such action is in compliance with all 
public bidding and other State and federal laws applicable to this Agreement and the acquisition and 
financing of the Equipment by Lessee. 

(c) This Agreement and the Lease Schedule have been duly executed and delivered by and 
constitute the valid and binding obligations of Lessee, enforceable against Lessee in accordance with 
their respective terms. 

(d) The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Lease Schedule by 
Lessee does not (i) violate any State or federal law or local law or ordinance, or any order, writ, injunction, 
decree, or regulation of any court or other governmental agency or body applicable to Lessee, or (ii) 
conflict with or result in the breach or violation of any term or provision of, or constitute a default under, 
any note, bond, mortgage, indenture, agreement, deed of trust, lease or other obligation to which Lessee 
is bound. 

(e) There is no action, suit, proceeding, claim, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, 
before or by any court, regulatory agency, public board or body pending or, to the best of Lessee’s 
knowledge, threatened against or affecting Lessee, challenging Lessee’s authority to enter into this 
Agreement or any other Lease Document or any other action wherein an unfavorable ruling or finding 
would adversely affect the enforceability of this Agreement or any other Lease Document. 

(f) Lessee or Lessee’s governing body has appropriated and/or taken other lawful actions 
necessary to provide moneys sufficient to pay all Rental Payments during the current fiscal year, and 
such moneys will be applied in payment of all Rental Payments due and payable during such current 
fiscal year. 

(g) Lessee has an immediate need for, and expects to make immediate use of, the 
Equipment, which need is not temporary or expected to diminish during the applicable Lease Term.   

6. INSURANCE 

6.1. Liability and Property Insurance.  Lessee shall, at its own expense, procure and maintain 
continuously in effect during each Lease Term: (a) public liability insurance for death or injuries to 
persons, or damage to property arising out of or in any way connected to the Equipment sufficient to 
protect Lessor and its assigns from liability in all events, with a coverage of not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence unless specified differently in the related Lease Schedule, and (b) insurance against such 
hazards as Lessor may require, including, but not limited to, all-risk casualty and property insurance, in an 
amount equal to the greater of the full replacement cost of the Equipment or the applicable Prepayment 
Price.   



DRAFT

 

6 

6.2. Insurance Requirements.  All insurance policies required by Section 6.1 shall be taken 
out and maintained with insurance companies acceptable to Lessor and shall contain a provision that 
thirty (30) days prior to any change in the coverage (including cancellation) the insurer must provide 
written notice to the insured parties.  No insurance shall be subject to any co-insurance clause.  Each 
liability insurance policy shall be endorsed to name Lessor and its assigns as an additional insured party 
and each casualty and property insurance policy shall be endorsed to name Lessor and its assigns as 
loss payee, in each case regardless of any breach of warranty or other act or omission of Lessee.  
Lessee may self-insure against the risks described in Section 6.1 with the prior written consent of Lessor.  

7. ADDITIONAL OBLIGATIONS  

7.1. Use and Maintenance of Equipment.  Lessee shall, at its own expense, maintain the 
Equipment in good condition and proper working order, and shall make all necessary repairs and 
replacements to keep the Equipment in such condition.  The Equipment will be used by Lessee only for 
the purpose of performing Lessee’s essential governmental functions.  Lessee shall not install, use, 
operate or maintain the Equipment improperly, carelessly, in violation of any manufacturer’s guidelines or 
in violation of any applicable law or regulation or in a manner contrary to that contemplated by this 
Agreement.  Lessee shall obtain and maintain all permits and licenses necessary for the installation and 
operation of the Equipment.  Lessee shall have sole responsibility to maintain and repair the Equipment. 
Lessee shall keep (or in the case of Equipment constituting motor vehicles, house) the Equipment at the 
address specified in the related Lease Schedule; provided that Lessee may change the location at which 
any Equipment is kept (or housed) with thirty (30) days prior written notice to Lessor specifying the 
address of the new location.  Lessee shall provide Lessor access at all reasonable times to examine and 
inspect the Equipment and provide Lessor with such access to the Equipment as may be reasonably 
necessary to perform maintenance on the Equipment in the event of failure by Lessee to perform its 
obligations hereunder.  If Lessor reasonably determines that Lessee is not maintaining any of the 
Equipment in accordance with this Section, Lessor may (to the extent permitted by law and in addition to 
any other remedies it may have) require Lessee to enter into maintenance contracts for such Equipment 
in form approved by Lessor and with approved providers. 

7.2. Taxes.  Lessee shall pay all taxes, assessments and other charges which are assessed 
or levied against the Equipment or any part thereof, during the Lease Term, whether assessed against 
Lessee or Lessor.  With respect to any taxes or charges that may lawfully be paid in installments over a 
period of years, Lessee shall be obligated to pay only such installments as accrue during the then current 
fiscal year of the Lease Term for such Equipment. 

7.3. Modification of Equipment.  Lessee will not, without the prior written consent of Lessor, 
affix or install any accessory equipment or device on any of the Equipment if such addition will change or 
impair the originally intended value, function or use of the Equipment. 

7.4. Liens.  Lessee shall not, directly or indirectly, create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any 
mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance or other claim with respect to the Equipment (each, a 
“Lien”), other than the respective rights of Lessor and Lessee as herein provided.  Lessee shall promptly, 
at its own expense, take such actions as may be necessary duly to discharge or remove any such claim if 
the same shall arise at any time.   

7.5. Financial Information.  Lessee shall deliver to Lessor (i) its annual audited financial 
statements within 270 days after the end of each fiscal year, (ii) its annual budget for each fiscal year 
promptly following approval thereof, and (iii) such other financial statements and information relating to 
the ability of Lessee to satisfy its obligations under this Agreement and the Lease as may be reasonably 
requested by Lessor from time to time. 



DRAFT

 

7 

8. TITLE; NO WARRANTIES BY LESSOR 

8.1. Title.  During the Lease Term, legal title to all Equipment shall be in Lessee, subject to 
Lessor’s interests under the applicable Lease Schedule and this Agreement.  Upon an Event of Default or 
Event of Nonappropriation, title shall immediately vest in Lessor, free and clear of any right, title or 
interest of Lessee.   

8.2. Personal Property.  The Equipment is and shall at all times be and remain personal 
property and not fixtures. 

8.3. No Warranties.  LESSEE ACQUIRES AND LEASES THE EQUIPMENT UNDER EACH 
LEASE “AS IS.”  LESSEE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT LESSOR DID NOT MANUFACTURE THE 
EQUIPMENT UNDER ANY LEASE.  LESSOR DOES NOT REPRESENT THE MANUFACTURER, 
SUPPLIER, OWNER OR DEALER, AND LESSEE SELECTED THE EQUIPMENT BASED UPON 
LESSEE’S OWN JUDGMENT.  LESSOR MAKES NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 
INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE 
OR OTHERWISE OR AS TO THE EQUIPMENT’S VALUE, DESIGN, CONDITION, USE, CAPACITY OR 
DURABILITY.  LESSEE AGREES THAT REGARDLESS OF CAUSE, LESSOR IS NOT RESPONSIBLE 
FOR, AND LESSEE WILL NOT MAKE ANY CLAIM AGAINST LESSOR FOR, ANY DAMAGES, 
WHETHER CONSEQUENTIAL, DIRECT, SPECIAL OR INDIRECT INCURRED BY LESSEE IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE EQUIPMENT UNDER ANY LEASE.  NEITHER THE MANUFACTURER, 
SUPPLIER OR DEALER NOR ANY SALESPERSON, EMPLOYEE OR AGENT OF THE 
MANUFACTURER, SUPPLIER OR DEALER IS LESSOR’S AGENT OR HAS ANY AUTHORITY TO 
SPEAK FOR LESSOR OR TO BIND LESSOR IN ANY WAY.  For and during the Lease Term under each 
Lease, Lessor assigns to Lessee any manufacturer’s or Supplier’s product warranties, express or implied, 
applicable to any Equipment and Lessor authorizes Lessee to obtain the customary services furnished in 
connection with such warranties at Lessee’s sole expense.  Lessee agrees that (a) all Equipment will 
have been purchased by Lessor for the benefit of the Lessee in accordance with Lessee’s specifications 
from suppliers selected by Lessee, (b) Lessor is not a manufacturer or dealer of any Equipment and has 
no liability for the delivery or installation of any Equipment, (c) Lessor assumes no obligation with respect 
to any manufacturer’s or Supplier’s product warranties or guaranties, (d) no manufacturer or Supplier or 
any representative of said parties is an agent of Lessor, and (e) any warranty, representation, guaranty or 
agreement made by any manufacturer or supplier or any representative of said parties shall not be 
binding upon Lessor. 

9. RISK OF LOSS; CASUALTY; INDEMNITY 

9.1. Risk of Loss.  As between Lessee and Lessor, Lessee bears the entire risk of loss, theft, 
damage or destruction of any Equipment in whole or in part for any reason whatsoever.  No loss to any 
Equipment shall relieve Lessee from the obligation to make any Rental Payments or to perform any other 
obligation under any Lease.  Proceeds of any insurance recovery will be applied to Lessee’s obligations 
under this Section 9. 

9.2. Notice of Loss.  If a casualty occurs to any Equipment, Lessee shall immediately notify 
Lessor of the same and Lessee shall, unless otherwise directed by Lessor, immediately repair the same. 

9.3. Application of Proceeds.  If any item of Equipment has suffered a casualty loss is beyond 
repair, then Lessee shall either:  (a) promptly replace such Equipment with similar equipment in good 
repair, condition and working order free and clear of any liens (except Lessor’s rights hereunder), in which 
event such replacement equipment shall automatically be Equipment under the applicable Lease, or 
(b) on the next scheduled Payment Date, pay Lessor (i) all amounts owed by Lessee under the applicable 
Lease, including the Rental Payment due on such date, plus (ii) an amount equal to the applicable 
Prepayment Price set forth in the Payment Schedule to the applicable Lease.  If Lessee is making such 
payment with respect to less than all of the Equipment under a Lease, then Lessor will provide Lessee 



DRAFT

 

8 

with the pro rata amount of the Prepayment Price to be paid by Lessee with respect to the such 
Equipment. 

9.4. Claims and Expenses.  To the extent permitted by and enforceable under State law, 
Lessee shall bear the risk for, shall pay directly and shall defend against any and all claims, liabilities, 
proceedings, actions, expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees), damages or losses arising under 
or related to any Equipment, including, but not limited to, the possession, ownership, lease, use or 
operation thereof.  These obligations of Lessee shall survive any expiration or termination of any Lease. 

10. ASSIGNMENT 

10.1. Assignment by Lessor.  Lessor may assign its rights, title and interest in and to any 
Lease, any Equipment or any Escrow Agreement (including the escrow fund thereunder), and/or may 
grant or assign a security interest in any Lease, its Equipment or any Escrow Agreement (including the 
escrow fund thereunder), in whole or in part, to any party at any time and from time to time without 
Lessee’s consent.  Any such assignee or lien holder (an “Assignee”) shall have all of the rights of Lessor 
under the applicable Lease and Escrow Agreement.  LESSEE AGREES NOT TO ASSERT AGAINST 
ANY ASSIGNEE ANY CLAIMS, ABATEMENTS, SETOFFS, COUNTERCLAIMS, RECOUPMENT OR 
ANY OTHER SIMILAR DEFENSES WHICH LESSEE MAY HAVE AGAINST LESSOR.  Unless otherwise 
agreed by Lessee in writing, any such assignment transaction shall not release Lessor from any of 
Lessor’s obligations under the applicable Lease.  An assignment or reassignment of any of Lessor’s right, 
title or interest in a Lease, its Equipment or any Escrow Agreement (including the escrow fund 
thereunder) shall be enforceable against Lessee only after Lessee receives a written notice of 
assignment that discloses the name and address of each such Assignee.  Lessee agrees to acknowledge 
in writing any such assignments if so requested.  Lessee shall keep a complete and accurate record of all 
such assignments in the form necessary to comply with Section 149(a) of the Code.  Lessee agrees to 
acknowledge in writing any such assignments if so requested. 

10.2. Assignment and Subleasing by Lessee.  Neither this Agreement nor any Lease or any 
Equipment may be assigned, subleased, sold, transferred, pledged or mortgaged by Lessee. 

11. EVENTS OF DEFAULT; REMEDIES 

11.1. Events of Default Defined.  The occurrence of any of the following events with respect to 
a Lease shall constitute an Event of Default under the Lease: 

(a) Lessee’s failure to pay any Rental Payment or other amount required to be paid to Lessor 
under the Lease within ten (10) days following the due date thereof, other than by reason of an Event of 
Nonappropriation; 

(b) Lessee fails to perform or observe any of its obligations under Section 6, 7.4 or 10.2 
hereof; 

(c) With the exception of the above clauses (a) or (b), Lessee’s failure to perform or abide by 
any condition, agreement or covenant with respect to the Lease for a period of thirty (30) days after 
written notice by Lessor to Lessee specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless 
Lessor shall agree in writing to an extension of time prior to its expiration; 

(d) Lessee is in default with respect to the payment or performance of any indebtedness, 
liability or obligation to Lessor or any of its affiliates under any note, loan agreement, security agreement, 
lease, title retention or conditional sales agreement or any other instrument or agreement (including the 
occurrence of any Event of Default under any other Lease then held by Lessor), whether accelerated or 
otherwise and any applicable grace period with respect thereto has expired; or 



DRAFT

 

9 

(e) Any statement, representation or warranty made by Lessee in the Lease or in any writing 
delivered by Lessee pursuant thereto or in connection therewith proves at any time to have been false, 
misleading or erroneous in any material respect as of the time when made; or 

(f) Lessee applies for or consents to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, conservator or 
liquidator of Lessee or of all or a substantial part of its assets, or a petition for relief is filed by Lessee 
under any federal or state bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium or similar law. 

11.2. Remedies on Default.  Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default with respect to a 
Lease, Lessor shall have the right, at its option and without any further demand or notice to one or more 
or all of the following remedies with respect to the Lease: 

(a) Lessor, with or without terminating the Lease, may declare all Rental Payments payable 
under the Lease to the end of the then-current fiscal year of Lessee to be immediately due and payable 
by Lessee, whereupon such Rental Payments shall be immediately due and payable. 

(b) Lessor may require Lessee to promptly return all Equipment to Lessor in the manner set 
forth in Section 11.3 (and Lessee agrees that it shall so return the Equipment), or Lessor may, at its 
option, enter upon the premises where any Equipment is located and repossess such Equipment without 
demand, without any court order or other process of law and without liability for any damage occasioned 
by such repossession; and Lessor may thereafter dispose of the Equipment.  If Lessor terminates the 
Lease and disposes of any or all of the Equipment, Lessor shall apply the proceeds of any such 
disposition to pay the following items in the following order: (i) all costs and expenses (including, but not 
limited to, attorneys’ fees) incurred in securing possession of the Equipment; (ii) all costs and expenses 
incurred in completing the disposition of the Equipment; (iii) any sales or transfer taxes incurred in the 
disposition of the Equipment; (iv) any Rental Payments payable under the Lease to the end of the then-
current fiscal year of Lessee; (v) the outstanding principal component of Rental Payments under the 
Lease; and (vi) any other amounts then due under the Lease.  Any disposition proceeds remaining after 
the requirements of clauses (i), (ii), (iii), (iv), (v) and (vi) have been met shall be paid to Lessee. 

(c) By written notice to any escrow agent that is holding proceeds of the Lease under an 
Escrow Agreement, Lessor may instruct such escrow agent to release all such proceeds and any 
earnings thereon to Lessor, such sums to be credited to payment of Lessee’s obligations under the 
Lease; or  

(d) Lessor may exercise any other remedy available, at law or in equity, with respect to such 
Event of Default. Lessee shall pay the reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses incurred by Lessor in 
exercising any remedy hereunder. 

11.3. Return of Equipment; Release of Lessee’s Interest.  Upon termination of any Lease prior 
to the payment of all Rental Payments or the applicable Prepayment Price thereunder (whether as result 
of an Event of Nonappropriation or Event of Default), Lessee shall, within ten (10) days after such 
termination, at its own expense: (a) perform any testing and repairs required to place the related 
Equipment in the condition required by Section 7; (b) if deinstallation, disassembly or crating is required, 
cause such Equipment to be deinstalled, disassembled and crated by an authorized manufacturer’s 
representative or such other service person as is satisfactory to Lessor; (c) return such Equipment to a 
location in the continental United States specified by Lessor, freight and insurance prepaid by Lessee; 
and (d) comply with any additional return conditions specified in the Lease Schedule.  Lessee shall 
execute and deliver to Lessor such documents as Lessor may request to evidence the passage of legal 
title and ownership to Lessor and termination of Lessee’s interest in the Equipment. 

With respect to any provision of the Agreement requiring Lessee to return all or any portion of the 
Equipment to Lessor or to transfer title to all or any portion of the equipment to Lessor, Lessee agrees to 
voluntarily do so.  In the event that Lessee fails or refuses to return or transfer the Equipment or title 



DRAFT

 

10 

thereto voluntarily as set forth above, Lessor acknowledges that the Agreement does not and shall not 
create a right in Lessor to involuntarily dispossess Lessee of title to or possession of all or any item of the 
Equipment.  In lieu of such right Lessor shall be entitled to and Lessee agrees to pay to Lessor 
immediately, but only from legally available funds, the Prepayment Price, plus any Rental Payments 
accrued and unpaid as of the date of such payment. 

11.4. Late Charge.  To the extent permitted by and enforceable under State law, Lessee shall 
pay Lessor a charge on any Rental Payment not paid on the date such payment is due at a rate equal to 
the interest rate set forth in the applicable Lease Schedule plus 5% per annum or the maximum amount 
permitted by law, whichever is less (the “Default Rate”), from such date.   

11.5. No Remedy Exclusive.  Each of the rights and remedies under this Agreement and each 
Lease is cumulative and may be enforced separately or concurrently.  No course of dealing or conduct 
between Lessor and Lessee shall be effective to amend, modify or change any provisions of this 
Agreement or any Lease.  No failure or delay by Lessor to insist upon the strict performance of any term, 
covenant or agreement of the Agreement or any Lease, or to exercise any right, power or remedy 
consequent upon a breach thereof, shall constitute a waiver of any such term, covenant or agreement or 
of any such breach, or preclude Lessor from exercising any such right, power or remedy at any later time 
or times. 

11.6. Costs and Attorneys’ Fees.  To the extent permitted by and enforceable under State law, 
upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, Lessee agrees to pay to Lessor or reimburse Lessor for, in 
addition to all other amounts payable hereunder, all of Lessor’s costs of collection, including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees, whether or not suit or action is filed thereon.  Any such costs shall be immediately due 
and payable upon written notice and demand given to Lessee, shall be secured by this Agreement until 
paid, and shall bear interest at the Default Rate.  In the event suit or action is instituted to enforce any of 
the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party such 
sum as the court may adjudge reasonable as attorneys’ fees at trial and on appeal of such suit or action 
or in any bankruptcy proceeding, in addition to all other sums provided by law. 

12. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

12.1. Notices.  All written notices to be given under this Agreement shall be given (a) 
personally, (b) by mail in registered or certified form, with postage prepaid, or (c) by overnight courier, 
charges prepaid, in each case to the party entitled thereto at its address specified beneath each party’s 
signature, or at such address as the party may provide to the other parties hereto in writing from time to 
time, and to any assignee at its address as it appears on the registration books maintained by Lessee.  
Any such notice shall be deemed to have been received 72 hours after deposit in the United States mail, 
24 hours after deposit with a courier, or, if given by other means, when delivered. 

12.2. Binding Effect.  This Agreement and each Lease hereunder shall be binding upon and 
shall inure to the benefit of Lessor and Lessee and their respective successors and assigns.  Specifically, 
as used herein the term “Lessor” means, with respect to a Lease, any person or entity to whom Lessor 
has assigned its right to receive Rental Payments under such Lease. 

12.3. Severability.  In the event any provision of this Agreement or any Lease shall be held 
invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision hereof. 

12.4. Entire Agreement; Amendments.  Each Lease constitutes the entire agreement of the 
parties with respect to the subject matter thereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous writings, 
understandings, agreements, solicitation documents and representations, express or implied.  Each 
Lease may be amended or modified only by written documents duly authorized, executed and delivered 
by Lessor and Lessee. 



DRAFT

 

11 

12.5. Captions.  The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and in 
no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions, Articles, Sections or clauses hereof. 

12.6. Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments.  Lessor and Lessee agree that they will, 
from time to time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be executed, acknowledged and 
delivered, such supplements hereto and such further instruments as may reasonably be required to 
perfect, confirm, establish, reestablish, continue or complete the interests of Lessor in this Agreement and 
each Lease, to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, and to carry out the 
purposes and intentions of this Agreement and each Lease. 

12.7. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State. 

12.8. Usury.  It is the intention of the parties hereto to comply with any applicable usury laws; 
accordingly, it is agreed that, notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary herein or in any Lease 
Schedule, in no event shall this Agreement or any Lease hereunder require the payment or permit the 
collection of interest or any amount in the nature of interest or fees in excess of the maximum amount 
permitted by applicable law.  Any such excess interest or fees shall first be applied to reduce principal, 
and when no principal remains, refunded to Lessee.  In determining whether the interest paid or payable 
exceeds the highest lawful rate, the total amount of interest shall be spread through the applicable Lease 
Term so that the interest is uniform through such term. 

12.9. Waiver of Jury Trial.  To the extent permitted by applicable law, Lessor and Lessee 
hereby waive any right to trial by jury in any action or proceeding with respect to, in connection with or 
arising out of this Agreement. 

12.10. Relationship of Parties.  Lessee acknowledges and agrees that (i) this Agreement and 
each Lease and the transactions related thereto is an arm’s-length commercial transaction between 
Lessor and Lessee, (ii) in connection therewith and with the discussions, undertakings, and procedures 
leading up to the consummation of this transaction, Lessor is and has been acting solely as a principal 
and is not acting as the agent, advisor or fiduciary of Lessee, (iii) Lessor has not assumed an advisory or 
fiduciary responsibility in favor of Lessee with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby or the 
discussions, undertakings, and procedures leading thereto (regardless of whether Lessor or any affiliate 
thereof has provided other services or is currently providing other services to Lessee on other matters) 
and Lessor has no obligation to Lessee with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby except the 
obligations expressly set forth in this Agreement and any Lease, and (iv) Lessee has consulted its own 
legal, financial, and other advisors to the extent it has deemed appropriate. 

12.11. Filing of Leases.  Lessee shall not file or submit, or permit the filing or submission, of all 
or any portion this Agreement or any Lease, any document related to this Agreement or any Lease, any 
default, event of acceleration, termination event, waiver, modification of terms or other similar events 
relating to this Agreement or any Lease or any summary of the foregoing with the Municipal Securities 
Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”) (or any successor to the MSRB or similar entity or service) unless such 
document or portion thereof has been provided to the Lessor in advance for review and redaction to the 
extent required by the Lessor and otherwise permitted under applicable MSRB rules or federal securities 
law, if any.  Lessor is not responsible for the Lessee’s or any other entity’s compliance with any 
continuing disclosure obligations under any applicable securities law or related agreement or undertaking. 

12.12. Counterparts.  This Agreement and any Lease Schedules may be executed in any 
number of counterparts, each of which shall be an original, with the same effect as if the signatures 
thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument, and in making proof of this Agreement and any Lease 
Schedules it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart. 



DRAFT

 

12 

12.13. Electronic Signatures.  The parties agree that the electronic signature of a party to this 
Agreement and any Lease Schedule shall be as valid as an original signature of such party and shall be 
effective to bind such party to this Agreement and such Lease Schedule(s).  The parties agree that any 
electronically signed document (including this Agreement and any Lease Schedule) shall be deemed (i) to 
be “written” or “in writing,” (ii) to have been signed and (iii) to constitute a record established and 
maintained in the ordinary course of business and an original written record when printed from electronic 
files.  Such paper copies or “printouts”, if introduced as evidence in any judicial, arbitral, mediation or 
administrative proceeding, will be admissible as between the parties to the same extent and under the 
same conditions as other original business records created and maintained in documentary form.  Neither 
party shall contest the admissibility of true and accurate copies of electronically signed documents on the 
basis of the best evidence rule or as not satisfying the business records exception to the hearsay rule.  
For purposes hereof, “electronic signature” means a manually signed original signature that is then 
transmitted by electronic means; “transmitted by electronic means” means sent in the form of a facsimile 
or sent via the internet as a “pdf” (portable document format) or other replicating image attached to an e 
mail message; and, “electronically signed document” means a document transmitted by electronic means 
and containing, or to which there is affixed, an electronic signature. 

[The remainder of this page is intentionally blank.  Signature page follows.]  



DRAFT

 

[Signature Page to Master Lease Purchase Agreement] 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor has caused this Agreement to be executed in its corporate name 
by its duly authorized officer, and Lessee has caused this Agreement to be executed in its name by its duly 
authorized officer. 

[LESSEE] 
Lessee 

[LESSOR] 
Lessor 

  

  

By: ______________________________  
Name:  
Title:   

By: ______________________________  
Name:  
Title:   

  
Address:    
 

Address:   
 

  
Telephone:   Telephone:  
E-mail address:   E-mail address:   
  

  

  

 



DRAFT

 

 

 EXHIBIT A 

LEASE SCHEDULE NO. __ 
to Master Lease Purchase Agreement 

Dated [DATE] 

This Lease Schedule (this “Lease Schedule”) relates to the Master Lease Purchase Agreement 
dated as of [DATE] (the “Agreement”) between the undersigned Lessor and Lessee, together with the 
terms and conditions of the Agreement incorporated herein by reference, constitutes a Lease.  Unless 
otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms will have the same meaning ascribed to them in the 
Agreement.  All terms and conditions of the Agreement are incorporated herein by reference. 

1. Equipment Description.  As used in the Lease, “Equipment” means all of the property described in 
Exhibit 1 attached to this Lease Schedule and all attachments, additions, accessions, parts, 
repairs, improvements, replacements and substitutions thereto. 

2. Purchase Price.  The Purchase Price for the Equipment is $____________ which amount shall 
be deposited in the Escrow Fund established pursuant to that certain Escrow Agreement dated 
as of [DATE] among Lessor, Lessee and [ESCROW AGENT]. 

3. Rental Payments; Lease Term.  The Rental Payments to be paid by Lessee to Lessor, the Lease 
Date and the Lease Term of this Lease are set forth on the Payment Schedule attached to this 
Lease Schedule as Exhibit 2. 

4. Essential Use; Current Intent of Lessee.  Lessee represents that (a) the use of the Equipment is 
essential to Lessee’s proper, efficient and economic functioning or to the services that Lessee 
provides to its citizens, (b) the Equipment will be used by Lessee only for the purpose of 
performing its governmental or proprietary functions consistent with the permissible scope of its 
authority and will not be used in a trade or business of any person or entity, and (c) the useful life 
of the Equipment is not less than the stated full Lease Term of this Lease.  Lessee has 
determined that a present need exists for the Equipment which need is not temporary or expected 
to diminish in the near future.  Lessee currently intends for the full Lease Term: to use the 
Equipment; and to continue this Lease. 

5. Representations, Warranties and Covenants.  Lessee hereby represents, warrants and 
covenants that its representations, warranties and covenants set forth in the Agreement are true 
and correct as though made on the date of execution of this Lease Schedule. 

6. [Bank Qualified.  Lessee certifies that it has designated this Lease as a qualified tax-exempt 
obligation in accordance with Section 265(b)(3) of the Code, that it has not designated more than 
$10,000,000 of its obligations as qualified tax-exempt obligations in accordance with such Section 
for the current calendar year and that it reasonably anticipates that the total amount of tax-exempt 
obligations to be issued by Lessee during the current calendar year will not exceed $10,000,000.] 

7. [Optional Prepayment/No Call.] 

[Signature Page Follows] 

 



DRAFT

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor has caused this Lease Schedule to be executed in its corporate 
name by its duly authorized officer, and Lessee has caused this Lease Schedule to be executed in its name 
by its duly authorized officer. 

[LESSEE] 
Lessee 

[LESSOR] 
Lessor 

  

  

By: ______________________________  
Name:  
Title:   

By: ______________________________  
Name:  
Title:   

  
Address:  

 
Address:   

 
  
Telephone:   Telephone:  
E-mail address:   E-mail address:   
  

  

  

 



DRAFT

 

 

 Exhibit 1 

 

Equipment Description 

   

 

 

[Equipment and Purchase Price] 

 



DRAFT

 

 

Exhibit 2 

 

Payment Schedule 

 

Annual Rate ____%



DRAFT

 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Form of 

ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE 

[Lessor] 
     
     
 

Re:  Lease Schedule No. ___ dated [DATE] (the “Lease Schedule”) to that certain Master 
Lease Purchase Agreement dated as of [DATE] (the “Agreement” and together with the 
Lease Schedule, the “Lease”) between [Lessor], as Lessor, and [Lessee], as Lessee 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting officer of Lessee 
identified below and, with respect to the above-referenced Lease Schedule, that: 

1.  The Equipment subject to the Lease Schedule and the Lease has been delivered and 
installed, is in good working order and is fully operational and has been fully accepted by Lessee on or 
before the date hereof. 

2.   Attached hereto are true and correct copies of the manufacturers’ and dealers’ invoices 
for the Equipment. 

3.   Lessee has appropriated and/or taken other lawful actions necessary to provide moneys 
sufficient to pay all Rental Payments required to be paid under the Lease during the current fiscal year of 
Lessee.  Such moneys will be applied in payment of all such Rental Payments due and payable during 
such current fiscal year.  

4.   No event or condition that constitutes, or with notice or lapse of time, or both, would 
constitute, an Event of Default (as defined in the Lease) exists at the date hereof. 

Date: _______________________ 

[LESSEE] 
Lessee 
 
 
By: ______________________________  
Name: 
Title:  

 



 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic:    Request to Dispose of Fixed Capital Asset – Fire Department   
  Pierce Mini-Pumper  

 
Summary:   Please see attached staff report and supporting documents. 

 
Suggested motion:   Staff recommends approval to dispose of fixed 

capital asset, 2002 Pierce Mini-Pumper, and 
authorize its removal from the fleet. 

 
Requested by:   Chief Scales, Public Safety Director 

  
Approved by:   Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 10/17/2024 

Agenda Item:   8-B 



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Office of the Public Safety Director 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 

Dan Scales, CFO, Public Safety Director, Fire Chief 

October 4, 2024 

Request to Dispose of Fixed Capital Asset - Fire Department Pierce Mini-Pumper 

Meeting Date: October 17, 2024 

Introduction: 1 
Staff is seeking approval from the Town Council to declare the 2002 Pierce Mini-Pumper (VIN# 2 
1FDAF57P73EB38835) as surplus property and authorize its removal from the Town’s fire 3 
department fleet. Staff recommends disposing of this fixed asset due to the vehicle’s age, limited 4 
utility, significant maintenance costs, and the anticipated reorganization of the fleet with the 5 
acquisition of a new Quint apparatus. 6 

7 
Process: 8 
Capital assets are defined by the Town as real or personal property that are used in operations, 9 
have an initial cost equal to or greater than $5,000, and have an estimated useful life of two or 10 
more years. Per Code of Ordinances Article VII, Division 3, Sec 2-382, personal property 11 
deemed obsolete, unusable, or in the best interest of the Town for sale, may be sold by negotiated 12 
sales, auction or other procedure approved by the Town Manager. Approval from the Town 13 
Manager and Town Council is required for the disposition of capital assets. 14 

15 
Background: 16 
The 2002 Mini-Pumper was purchased by Harbour Village at the request of a former fire chief, 17 
specifically for accessing the “cloverleaf” parking decks of the condominiums. These areas 18 
required a specialized vehicle at the time due to access constraints. However, with the 19 
implementation of comprehensive fire suppression systems, including sprinkler systems and 20 
accessible standpipes, the need for the mini-pumper has diminished significantly. Over the years, 21 
the vehicle has not been needed or utilized for its original intended purpose.  22 

23 
24 

Discussion: 25 
In conjunction with the department’s accreditation process, staff has been evaluating the 26 
necessity of retaining the mini-pumper in the fleet. The vehicle is over 20 years old and no 27 
longer serves a critical function within the department, as described further below. 28 



2 

 29 
1. Limited Utility: 30 

The mini-pumper was originally purchased to address specific fire protection needs in the 31 
Harbour Village "cloverleaf" parking structures. At the time, its smaller size and 32 
maneuverability were deemed essential for navigating these confined spaces. However, 33 
these buildings have always been equipped with modern fire suppression systems, 34 
including fully operational sprinkler systems and well-positioned standpipes, which 35 
provide robust fire protection. As a result, the mini-pumper has become redundant, as its 36 
primary mission has been effectively handled by these advanced systems. The decision to 37 
dispose of the vehicle will not compromise the fire department’s ability to protect the 38 
Harbour Village structures, as the existing fire suppression infrastructure more than meets 39 
current safety requirements. 40 
 41 

2. Maintenance Costs and Mechanical Issues: 42 
The vehicle is currently experiencing significant maintenance issues. The fire pump 43 
requires a complete rebuild, which is estimated to cost between $8,000 and $10,000. 44 
Additionally, the mini-pumper is equipped with a six-liter diesel engine, known for head 45 
gasket failures, which is a likely and costly repair as the vehicle ages. Given these 46 
mechanical concerns, continuing to maintain the vehicle would not be cost-effective. 47 
Given the truck's age—over 20 years—and the increasing costs associated with its 48 
maintenance, its removal from the fleet is both practical and timely. 49 
 50 

3. Fleet Reorganization: 51 
With the pending acquisition of a new 75’ Quint apparatus and the proposed 52 
reassignment of the current fire engine to reserve status, the mini-pumper will no longer 53 
have a defined role in the Town’s fleet. The new Quint will provide the fire suppression 54 
capabilities needed, and the existing fire engine will serve as a reserve, eliminating the 55 
need for the mini-pumper. 56 
 57 

4. Vehicle Value and Sale Method: 58 
The mini-pumper’s current value is slightly more than $10,000, and investing in further 59 
repairs would not increase its value significantly. To maximize the return from the sale, 60 
staff recommends selling the vehicle using the method that realizes the greatest financial 61 
return. Potential options include public auction platforms like GovDeals or specialized 62 
fire apparatus brokers. 63 

 64 
Conclusion: 65 
The mini-pumper has outlived its intended purpose and is becoming increasingly costly to 66 
maintain. With the department’s evolving needs and the upcoming reorganization of the fleet, 67 
Staff believes that it is in the Town’s best interest to dispose of the vehicle. The financial burden 68 
of maintaining a vehicle with no defined mission and significant mechanical issues outweighs 69 
any potential benefit of keeping it in service. 70 
 71 
Recommendation: 72 
Staff recommends that the Town Council approve the request to dispose of this fixed capital 73 



3 

asset:  the 2002 Pierce Mini-Pumper (VIN# 1FDAF57P73EB38835), and authorize its removal 74 
from the fleet. 75 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment: 
Fixed Asset Disposal Form 



  EXHIBIT D - FIXED ASSET DISPOSAL FORM Dept# 22
(not required)

  TO:  FINANCE DEPARTMENT DISPOSAL DATE: 10/17/2024

  The following item was:

  From the : FIRE Department

Description: FIRE TRUCK-MINI PUMPER A78

Acquisition Date: 10/29/1992

Cost New: $139,942.00

Town Asset#: 1783

Town Vehicle#:

VIN#: 1FDAF57P73EB38835

Serial#:

Model#:

Manufacturer:

  Signature of Department Custodian Verifying Deletion

  Signature of Town Manager

Disposal Method: Sale/Auction

Donation Recipient

Junked/Scrapped Obsolete Broken

Stolen Police Report Filed Yes No

Lost

X Other To be determined

TOWN OF PONCE INLET
Capital Assets Policies and Procedures Manual

  ASSET INFORMATION:

PLEASE FORWARD COPY OF SIGNED FORM AND ANY SUPPORTING BACKUP DOCUMENTION TO FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Junked/Scrapped

PLEASE AUTHORIZE TRANSFER/DISPOSAL IN ACCORDANCE WITH CURRENT COUNCIL POLICY

Attachment 1



 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic:    Request to Retain the Current Fire Engine as a Reserve 
 Apparatus.  

 
Summary:   Please see attached staff report and supporting documents. 

 
Suggested motion:   Staff recommends approval for the retention of the 

current fire engine as a reserve apparatus, as 
recommended by the Essential Services Advisory 
Board. 

 
Requested by:   Chief Scales, Public Safety Director 

  
Approved by:   Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 10/17/2024 

Agenda Item:   8-C 



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Office of the Public Safety Director 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Micheal E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 

Dan Scales, Public Safety Director 

October 4, 2024 

Request to Retain the Current Fire Engine as a Reserve Apparatus 

Town Council Meeting Date: October 17, 2024 

Introduction: 1 
At the October 3, 2024, Essential Services Advisory Board (ESAB) meeting, the Board 2 
discussed the proposal from Staff to retain the Town's current fire engine as a reserve unit, 3 
pending the placement of the new 75' Quint apparatus into service. The Board ultimately 4 
supported this proposal after weighing the public safety benefits and financial considerations. 5 
This report summarizes the decision factors and rationale behind the Board's recommendation to 6 
the Town Council. 7 

Background: 8 
The Town's Fire Department operates a full-service emergency response system with around 9 
1,000 calls annually, 750 of which are EMS-related. The current fire engine plays a dual role as a 10 
fire suppression unit and an Advanced Life Support (ALS) emergency medical responder. With 11 
the new Quint apparatus expected to be delivered in the next few months, a decision was needed 12 
on whether to retain the 2009 fire engine as a backup unit or remove it from the fleet. 13 

At the September 19, 2024, Town Council meeting, the Town Council approved purchasing the 14 
Quint, with the financing to be determined. However, no final decision was made regarding the 15 
retention of the existing engine, and it was referred to the ESAB for further evaluation. On 16 
October 3, the ESAB reviewed the operational and financial implications and voted 5-0 to 17 
recommended retaining the fire engine as a reserve. 18 

Discussion: 19 
The information provided to the ESAB is attached to this report for the Council’s review, and is 20 
also summarized below: 21 

22 
1. Operational Impact:23 

The retention of the existing fire engine ensures continuity in fire and EMS responses when24 
the new Quint is out of service for maintenance or repairs. The Town's fire engine is the25 



2 

only ALS-equipped vehicle available when the ambulance is engaged in patient transport, 26 
making it crucial to have as a backup to avoid service interruptions. Although there had 27 
been previous discussions and analysis about storing the reserve unit off-site with a 28 
neighboring department, there now appears to be sufficient space available at the Town’s 29 
fire station and Public Works facilities for this purpose. Neighboring departments have 30 
historically provided reserve fire engines; however, the availability of such units has 31 
diminished, making it more essential for the Town to retain its own reserve engine rather 32 
than relying on other jurisdictions. 33 

2. Financial Considerations:34 
While selling the fire engine could generate a one-time revenue of $6,000 to $50,000,35 
retaining the engine as a reserve is estimated to cost approximately $3,600 annually for36 
maintenance and insurance. This modest cost is justified given the engine's critical role in37 
maintaining uninterrupted emergency services, outweighing the short-term financial gain of38 
selling it.39 

3. National Standards and Best Practices:40 
The National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) recommends maintaining a reserve41 
apparatus to ensure operational readiness. Most communities follow this best practice to42 
avoid relying solely on mutual aid agreements, which may result in delayed response times43 
during emergencies.44 

4. Risk of Not Retaining a Reserve Engine:45 
Without a backup engine, any mechanical failure of the new Quint would leave the Town46 
without sufficient fire and EMS response capabilities. Delayed response times could lead to47 
higher property damage, increased risk to life and safety, and potential legal liabilities.48 

49 
Retaining the current fire engine as a reserve unit aligns with industry best practices, supports 50 
continuous emergency services, and mitigates operational risks. 51 

Recommendation: 52 
That the Town Council approve the retention of the current fire engine as a reserve apparatus, as 53 
recommended by the ESAB. 54 

Attachments: 
September 26, 2024 Retention of Current Engine as Reserve Engine Justification memo 
September 27, 2024 Supplemental Information to Keep Current Engine as Reserve Engine 



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Public Works Department 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Essential Services Advisory Board  

Dan Scales, Public Safety Director 

September 26, 2024 

Discussion to Retain Current Fire Engine as a Reserve Apparatus 

MEETING DATE:  October 3, 2024 

1 
PURPOSE 2 
This report outlines the pros and cons for retaining the Town’s current fire engine as a reserve unit 3 
following the acquisition of a new Quint. With a significant portion of the department’s responses 4 
being EMS-related, the availability of a backup engine is critical to ensuring continuous fire and EMS 5 
service. This report also considers the financial implications, including maintenance costs, and the 6 
operational impact of the engine's reassignment as a reserve vehicle. 7 

8 
BACKGROUND 9 
The Town’s Fire Department is a full-service operation, handling approximately 750 emergency 10 
medical service (EMS) calls per year, with a total call volume of about 1,000 calls annually. As part of 11 
the standard response protocol, the fire engine responds to every EMS call in town. The fire engine is 12 
equipped with Advanced Life Support (ALS) capabilities and a paramedic, making it the only 13 
responding ALS unit when the ambulance is engaged in patient transport. 14 

15 
At the January 11, and March 7, 2024, Essential Services Advisory Board (ESAB) meetings, the 16 
justification for replacing the Town’s existing 2009 fire engine with a new 75’ Quint apparatus was 17 
discussed, and the Board included the purchase of a Quint with its budgetary recommendations to the 18 
Town Council for FY 2024/2025. On September 19, 2024, the Town Council approved the purchase a 19 
75’ Quint, with financing to be determined. That same evening, the Council approved the fiscal year 20 
2024/2025 budget, which included funding for equipment for the new Quint along with a replacement 21 
hose for the existing apparatus. Staff has put out an RFP for financing for the new Quint, with options 22 
for 7- and 10-year terms, which will be reviewed by the Council at the October 17, 2024, Council 23 
meeting. Delivery of the new Quint vehicle is expected within the next few months.  24 

25 
As part of the fleet plan, Staff proposes to surplus the current 2001 mini-pumper and retain the 2009 26 
fire engine as a reserve unit. This approach would allow the Town to maintain reliable fire and EMS 27 
response capabilities while managing its fleet efficiently. 28 

29 

Attachment 1



2 

At the September 19th Council meeting, the Council discussed but did not decide on whether to retain 30 
the current fire engine as a backup or remove it from the fleet. Staff is requesting the Board’s review 31 
and recommendation on this topic for presentation to the Town Council on October 17th. 32 

33 
DISCUSSION 34 

35 
Operational Impact 36 
The absence of a backup engine during maintenance or mechanical failure could severely disrupt the 37 
Town’s ability to provide continuous fire and EMS services. While selling the engine could generate 38 
short-term revenue, the operational risks posed by not having a reserve engine far outweigh the 39 
financial benefits. The potential risks are discussed further below. 40 

41 
Continuous Fire and EMS Coverage 42 
The Fire Department relies on its fire engine not only for fire emergencies but also for medical 43 
responses, particularly when the ambulance is occupied with patient transport. The fire engine is the 44 
only department vehicle equipped with Advanced Life Support (ALS) capabilities. Without a backup 45 
engine, any mechanical failure or required maintenance on the primary engine would cause delays in 46 
response times, directly compromising public safety. Maintaining a reserve engine ensures operational 47 
readiness at all times. This minimizes service interruptions, reduces dependency on neighboring cities 48 
for reserve apparatus, and helps avoid service gaps during critical situations. 49 

50 
Decrease in Available Reserve Trucks from Neighboring Departments 51 
Historically, neighboring fire departments have provided reserve fire engines to the Town when 52 
needed. However, the availability of these units has diminished significantly, which means the Town 53 
can no longer rely on external cities for backup. This reduction in available support makes it even more 54 
crucial for the Town to retain its own reserve engine, ensuring its ability to maintain consistent and 55 
effective response capabilities for both fire and EMS calls. 56 

57 
Financial and Maintenance Considerations 58 
Although the current engine remains in good mechanical condition, its age and continuous use as a 59 
frontline vehicle have led to significant wear and tear. Transitioning the engine to a reserve unit will 60 
greatly reduce its future usage, minimizing the strain that daily operations place on the vehicle. 61 
Continued daily use of the engine would likely result in more frequent repairs, which, while 62 
manageable, present ongoing concerns regarding operational availability. Each unanticipated repair 63 
affects both the engine's usability and the department’s ability to respond effectively. 64 

65 
The department currently allocates just over $40,000 annually for maintenance across its entire fleet. 66 
By eliminating routine and unscheduled maintenance costs associated with the 2001 mini-pumper and 67 
transitioning the current engine to reserve status, we expect the budgeted repair and maintenance costs 68 
to remain stable, with the potential for future reductions. The estimated routine maintenance for the 69 
reserve engine is approximately $2,000 annually, along with an insurance cost of $1,600. This is a 70 
modest expense, especially considering the critical role the engine plays in maintaining uninterrupted 71 
fire and EMS services. 72 

73 
NFPA 1901 Recommendations: 74 
The National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) is a non-profit organization dedicated to reducing 75 
deaths, injuries, and economic losses caused by fire, electrical, and related hazards. NFPA establishes 76 
industry standards for fire services, including recommendations for the lifespan of fire apparatus. 77 



3 

According to NFPA 19001, which governs the standards for Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting Vehicles, 78 
Automotive Fire Apparatus, Wildland Fire Apparatus, and Automotive Ambulances, the typical 79 
service life for a frontline fire engine is 15 years. 80 

81 
NFPA also recommends that frontline engines transitioned to reserve status can remain in service for 82 
an additional 10 years, with the potential for further extension if the vehicle is used infrequently and 83 
maintained properly. Given the current fire engine’s condition and the reduced wear it will experience 84 
as a reserve unit, keeping it aligns well with NFPA 1900 standards. This means the engine is expected 85 
to provide reliable service for several more years, offering a cost-effective solution for maintaining 86 
operational readiness. 87 

88 
Sale/Auction Value 89 
Information from fire engine brokers, apparatus dealers, and neighboring cities indicates that selling 90 
or auctioning the current fire engine could yield between $6,000 and $50,000 for the Town. While this 91 
could provide a one-time influx of funds, the long-term benefits of retaining the engine far outweigh 92 
the short-term financial gain from its sale. Keeping the engine as a reserve unit ensures that the Town 93 
can maintain effective response capabilities, particularly in emergencies when operational readiness is 94 
critical. The value of uninterrupted fire and EMS service cannot be overstated, making the decision to 95 
retain the engine a prudent one for the community’s safety and well-being. 96 

97 
Risk of Not Retaining a Reserve Engine 98 
The lack of a reserve engine presents risks to operational response and the community at large, 99 
including: 100 

101 
Service Disruptions: Without a backup engine, any failure or downtime of the primary engine could 102 
leave the Town without adequate fire and EMS response capabilities, with the closest fire response 103 
unit a minimum of 10-13 minutes from town (assuming the apparatus is in the station at the time 104 
of call). The closest responding stations are located in Daytona Beach Shores on AIA, and Port 105 
Orange on US 1. 106 

107 
Increased Liability: Delayed response times due to a lack of apparatus could expose the Town to 108 
liability, particularly in cases where lives or property are lost due to preventable delays.  109 

110 
Increased Property Damage: 111 
• Fire Spread: Fires double in size every minute. A delayed response allows the fire to112 

intensify and spread, causing more extensive structural damage over time.113 

• Higher Costs: The longer a fire burns unchecked, the more damage is done, leading to114 
significantly higher repair or rebuilding costs.115 

• Loss of Property: Irreplaceable personal belongings may be completely destroyed. A fire in116 
one of the Town’s historical structures could lead to the loss of unique historic artifacts.117 

118 
Greater Risk to Life and Safety: 119 
• Casualties: A delayed response increases the risk of injuries or fatalities to building120 

occupants, as they have less time to evacuate.121 

1 https://www.nfpa.org/codes-and-standards/nfpa-1900-standard-development/1900 

https://www.nfpa.org/codes-and-standards/nfpa-1900-standard-development/1900


4 

• Firefighter Safety: A more advanced fire can pose greater hazards to responding122 
firefighters, requiring more aggressive firefighting tactics, which come with increased risk.123 

• Evacuation Challenges: As the fire grows, it may block potential exit routes, complicating124 
evacuation efforts for trapped individuals.125 

126 
Economic Consequences/Loss of Business: If the structure is a commercial property, a slow 127 
response can result in more significant downtime, leading to lost income for businesses. 128 

• Insurance Costs: Higher property damage often leads to increased insurance claims, which129 
can drive up premiums for the property owner and potentially for the community as a whole.130 

• Rebuilding Delays: Extensive damage may take longer to repair, delaying the recovery of the131 
affected area.132 

133 
Community Impact: A slow response time for Emergency Medical Services (EMS) calls can have 134 
several adverse impacts, many of which can significantly affect patient outcomes and community 135 
trust in public safety systems. These impacts include: 136 

• Public Trust: Slow response times can erode public confidence in emergency services,137 
particularly if delays are repeated or have serious consequences.138 

• Displacement: Residents may be displaced for extended periods if their homes are rendered139 
uninhabitable, leading to additional social and financial strain on the community.140 

• Impact on Infrastructure: Fires can damage critical infrastructure such as electrical141 
systems, roadways, or water lines, resulting in further disruptions.142 

• Increased Mortality and Morbidity: Delays in EMS response can lead to worse medical143 
outcomes, especially for time-sensitive emergencies like heart attacks, strokes, or traumatic144 
injuries. The "golden hour" is critical for trauma patients, and any delay reduces the chance145 
of survival and successful recovery.146 

• Worsening of Medical Conditions: A slow response may allow a patient's condition to147 
deteriorate further. For example, in cardiac arrest cases, brain damage can occur within148 
minutes if appropriate life-saving interventions, like CPR and defibrillation, are not149 
administered promptly.150 

• Legal and Financial Consequences: In cases where slow response times lead to death or151 
severe injury, municipalities and EMS providers could face legal action, leading to lawsuits,152 
increased insurance premiums, and financial liabilities. This can further strain public153 
resources.154 

155 
CONCLUSION 156 
Maintaining a reserve fire engine is considered a standard industry practice across fire departments for 157 
several important reasons, rooted in operational efficiency, safety, and service reliability. Fire engines 158 
are essential tools for providing critical emergency services, and the inherent unpredictability of 159 
mechanical failures or maintenance needs makes it crucial for any fire department to have backup 160 
apparatus readily available. A reserve engine ensures that when the primary engine is undergoing 161 
repairs or routine maintenance, the department can continue to meet the community’s emergency needs 162 
without disruption. 163 

164 



5 

Mutual aid between fire departments in different jurisdictions is intended to provide temporary 165 
assistance during extraordinary circumstances, such as large-scale incidents or when local resources 166 
are temporarily overwhelmed. It is not designed to replace a department’s own operational readiness 167 
for everyday emergency calls. Neighboring cities are not required, nor obligated, to loan their 168 
equipment for extended periods or to cover gaps in another department’s fleet. 169 

170 
The reserve apparatus of neighboring cities is often limited as well, and a city’s priority will always be 171 
to ensure that they can maintain adequate coverage for their own communities. Given that fire 172 
departments face many of the same challenges, such as aging fleets, budget constraints, and equipment 173 
maintenance cycles, it is increasingly difficult to rely on other municipalities to provide continuous 174 
support. When multiple departments are under strain, such as during natural disasters or periods of 175 
high call volume, the availability of mutual aid becomes even more uncertain. 176 

177 
Borrowing an apparatus from neighboring jurisdictions places an additional burden on those 178 
departments, potentially leaving them less prepared for emergencies in their own areas. This reliance 179 
could lead to delays in response times for both the borrowing and lending departments, ultimately 180 
putting public safety at risk. In situations where an emergency escalates or simultaneous incidents 181 
occur, having a reserve engine ensures that a fire department is self-sufficient and ready to respond 182 
promptly. 183 

184 
By maintaining a reserve fire engine, the Ponce Inlet Fire Department can uphold its responsibility to 185 
provide uninterrupted emergency services to the community. This practice reduces dependence on 186 
external resources, mitigates the risk of service gaps, and ensures the department remains prepared for 187 
both routine and extraordinary situations. In contrast, relying solely on mutual aid without a reserve 188 
engine can expose the department to operational vulnerabilities and may compromise its ability to meet 189 
the safety needs of the community effectively. 190 

191 
RECOMMENDATION 192 
Staff recommends retaining the existing fire engine for the reasons outlined above. Staff requests the 193 
Board’s review and recommendation on this issue for a future decision by the Town Council. 194 

195 



1 

MEMORANDUM 
The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 

ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: 
From: 
Date: 
Subject: 

Micheal E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
Dan Scales, Public Safety Director 
September 27, 2024 
Supplementary information regarding use of the existing fire engine as a reserve 
apparatus 

MEETING DATE: October 3, 2024 

Below is additional information about the decision to retain or dispose of the existing fire engine, 1 
in response to questions that have been received from the public. I hope you and the ESAB find 2 
the responses helpful as part of the evaluation process. 3 

4 
1. What is the potential sale value of the existing fire engine? To date we have the5 

following price information from current research:6 
7 

City of New Smyrna engine auction (through J.J. Kane Auctioneers) - $6,0008 
City of Deltona engine auction (through Govdeals.com)- $19,1059 
Matheny Fire & Emergency offer - $50,00010 

11 
We also have outstanding submittals with Fenton Fire Apparatus, Command Fire12 
Apparatus, Brindlee Mountain Fire Apparatus, Fire Line Equipment, Bunker Fire Safety13 
and Fire Mall but have not received any offers yet.14 

15 
2. Can the Town solicit bids for the sale of the existing engine to get an idea of the best16 

price? Yes, soliciting bids is a standard practice for obtaining competitive pricing. This17 
allows the Town to compare bids and evaluate different vendors based on cost,18 
specifications, and qualifications, ensuring the most cost-effective solution. Although not19 
used frequently, this process is authorized by the Code of Ordinances Sec. 2-382(a) upon20 
declaration of the engine as surplus property by the Town Council.21 

22 
3. Do other communities have reserve fire engines? What is the nationally recommended23 

best practice or standard? Yes, most communities have reserve fire trucks to ensure24 
coverage when primary vehicles are out of service. The National Fire Protection25 
Association (NFPA) recommends having reserve apparatus to ensure operational26 
continuity. Maintaining a reserve unit is viewed as best practice for fire departments.27 

28 

Attachment 2



2 

4. If the Town keeps the existing fire engine, where would it be stored? There are two29 
options. The first option is to store the reserve engine at the Town’s fire station. Room can30 
be made available by disposing of the mini-pumper, moving the two lawn equipment31 
trailers at Public Works to the garages behind the fire station, and relocating the reserve32 
ambulance to one of the tall bays at the Public Works facility. Relocating the two Public33 
Works lawn equipment trailers to the garages behind the fire station has the added benefit34 
of providing more convenient positioning for grounds equipment maintenance for the north35 
half of town. The second option is to store it in New Smyrna Beach, which has agreed to do36 
so at no cost to the Town.37 

38 
5. How are such arrangements typically handled between Fire Departments? Is an MOU39 

or interlocal agreement typical or necessary? Even if not typical, can it be handled40 
that way? The fire departments in southeast Volusia County, including Port Orange,41 
Daytona Beach Shores, New Smyrna, South Daytona, and Edgewater, have maintained a42 
close, informal working relationship regarding the use of reserve apparatus. We have43 
borrowed fire trucks and ambulances from other southeast cities for over a decade without44 
any conflicts or disputes over maintenance and insurance responsibility. While this system45 
has worked well, we could formalize it with an MOU or interlocal agreement to clarify46 
terms of use, responsibility, and liability.47 

48 
6. Will other communities get to use our existing fire engine if they agree to store it? If49 

so, what does the Town get in return? Typically, if another community stores our50 
existing engine, there will be an agreement allowing them to use it when needed. In return,51 
the Town will require that the storage will be at no cost and that the city using the reserve52 
engine covers the cost of fuel and maintenance services. It should be noted that the loaning53 
city always has priority for use of its apparatus and can reclaim it at any time. This type of54 
arrangement can be clearly defined in a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) or55 
interlocal agreement.56 

57 
7. For the community using our reserve fire engine, are Ponce Inlet taxpayers58 

subsidizing it by paying for something they won’t? No, since there would be a clear59 
cost-sharing or mutual benefit arrangement in place.60 

61 
8. How much will it cost annually to maintain and insure the existing fire engine in a62 

reserve capacity? The estimated routine maintenance for the reserve engine is63 
approximately $2,000 annually, along with an insurance cost of $1,600.64 

65 
9. Does the Town bear any liability for an accident caused by the other community using66 

our reserve vehicle? Who pays? If the other community is using our reserve fire engine,67 
they assume responsibility for any damages or accidents. Liability insurance or68 
indemnification clauses would be important to include in an MOU or interlocal agreement69 
to protect Ponce Inlet.70 

71 
10. If the Town does not keep the existing fire engine, how many reserve fire engines are72 

currently available in surrounding communities for us to use if necessary? Below is73 



3 

the current reserve inventory for the surrounding departments: 74 
 75 
Daytona Beach Shores – 1 76 
Port Orange – 2 77 
Edgewater – 1 78 
New Smyrna Beach – 0 (will have 2 when new engines are received) 79 
South Daytona – 1 80 
 81 
No fire department is under any obligation to loan its vehicles to another jurisdiction. 82 
Ponce Inlet has been able to do so over the years because of the close working relationship 83 
our region has had, both on response and asset sharing. 84 
 85 

11. What is the process for securing a fire engine from another community if we need to 86 
do so? How long does it take? The time to secure a reserve engine takes time, provided 87 
one is actually available. It is not uncommon for it to take hours to find a vehicle from 88 
another city. The process involves calling each city to find an available reserve apparatus.  89 
 90 

12. How often can we expect our existing fire engine to be used as a backup in Ponce 91 
Inlet? In other words, how often will the new engine be out of service for 92 
maintenance? The new fire engine will need to undergo regular preventive maintenance, 93 
which will require it to be out of service for short periods. We expect the frequency to be a 94 
few times a year with an average occurrence of once every other month. This does not 95 
include unforeseen repairs, which can still occur, even if less frequently with a new 96 
apparatus. 97 
 98 

13. At the September 19, 2024 Town Council meeting, it was disclosed that the existing 99 
pumper is being sold. Why now? The removal of the mini-pumper from the fleet has been 100 
under evaluation for over a year. To keep fleet vehicle maintenance costs manageable, we 101 
believe that now is the appropriate time to retire the truck. The vehicle, which is over 20 102 
years old, no longer serves a functional purpose in the department. 103 

 104 
The mini-pumper was originally purchased by Harbour Village at the request of the former 105 
fire chief, specifically to access the “cloverleaf” parking decks of the condominiums. 106 
However, these areas are fully sprinklered, and standpipes are easily accessible, eliminating 107 
the need for a specialized vehicle like the mini-pumper. Over the years, we have not had to 108 
use the vehicle for its intended purpose. 109 
 110 
In addition to its limited utility, the mini-pumper now faces significant maintenance issues. 111 
The fire pump now requires a complete rebuild, which would cost between $8,000 and 112 
$10,000. Furthermore, the truck is equipped with a six-liter diesel engine, which are known 113 
for head gasket failures—a likely and costly repair as the vehicle ages. The value of the 114 
vehicle itself is only slightly more than $10,000.   115 
 116 
With the pending acquisition of a new Quint apparatus, and if the current fire engine is 117 
reassigned to reserve status, the mini-pumper would no longer have a clear role in the fleet. 118 



4 

Given the maintenance costs, mechanical issues, and lack of a defined mission, Staff does 119 
not believe it is in the town’s best interest to keep the vehicle in service. 120 

 121 
14. The Town currently has two ambulances. Why is the fire engine also needed to 122 

provide EMS services? Why is the fire engine equipped with Advanced Life Support 123 
capabilities rather than both ambulances? The second ambulance currently serves as a 124 
reserve transport vehicle and is not fully equipped with its own advanced life support 125 
(ALS) gear. When the reserve ambulance is needed, the ALS equipment—such as 126 
monitors, defibrillators, and medication kits—is transferred from the primary ambulance to 127 
the reserve unit. This allows the reserve ambulance to be deployed for patient transport 128 
when the primary unit is unavailable or out of service. 129 
 130 
The town’s fire engine is dual-purpose, functioning as both an ALS response vehicle and a 131 
fire suppression unit. It carries medical supplies and firefighters trained as paramedics or 132 
EMTs, enabling the engine to respond to medical emergencies as well as fires. This is a 133 
standard practice in many departments and ensures the town maintains both emergency 134 
medical services (EMS) and firefighting capabilities if both are needed for the same 135 
emergency call. 136 
 137 

15. If the Town elects to keep the existing fire engine, and it is being stored out of town 30 138 
minutes away, what is the difference between that and requesting help from another 139 
nearby department for an emergency? The difference is that when the existing engine is 140 
being stored out of town or retrieved for back-up use, the process would be planned and 141 
scheduled well in advance. This coordination ensures the reserve engine is available when 142 
needed.  143 
 144 
In the case of unscheduled maintenance, such as mechanical failures or emergency repairs, 145 
the situation is less predictable. During these instances, our immediate fire response would 146 
rely on mutual aid agreements with neighboring cities while we secure a reserve engine, as 147 
per our current practice. This ensures the town remains protected during the interim. There 148 
are risks to this approach, though. Relying solely on mutual aid can create response time 149 
gaps and add strain to neighboring departments, especially if they are handling their own 150 
emergencies.  151 



 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic:  Ordinance 2024-06 – 1st reading – Amending Section 2.40 – Table 

of Permitted Uses in the Land Use and Development Code to 
include farmers markets as a major special exception use in the 
P-I (Public-Institutional) zoning district. 

 
Summary: This attached ordinance has been drafted in response to the 

Town Council’s directive to amend the Land Use and 
Development Code (LUDC) to allow farmers markets as a 
special exception use in the Public-Institutional (P-I) zoning 
district. 

  
 

Suggested motion:  Staff recommends approval of proposed Ordinance 
2024-06, amending Section 2.40 – Table of 
Permitted Uses to include farmers markets as a 
major special exception use in the P-I zoning 
district excluding 14 of the 17 P-I zoned properties.  

 
 
Requested by:   Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 
 
 

 Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 10/17/2024 

Agenda Item:   11-A 



 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

TOWN OF PONCE INLET, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring, and fair in delivering community excellence  

while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

 

To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager  
 

From: Patty Rippey, AICP, Principal Planner 
 

Through: Darren Lear, AICP, Planning & Development Director 
 

Date: October 4, 2024 
 

Subject: Ord. No. 2024-06 – Amending Section 2.40 – Table of Permitted Uses in the Land 

Use and Development Code to include farmers markets as a major special exception 

use in the Public-Institutional zoning district  
 

 

MEETING DATE: October 17, 2024 
 

 

INTRODUCTION 1 

This proposed ordinance has been drafted in response to the Town Council’s directive to amend 2 

the Land Use and Development Code (LUDC) to allow farmers markets as a special exception use 3 

in the Public-Institutional (P-I) zoning district. 4 

 5 

AUTHORITY AND PROCESS 6 

Pursuant to LUDC Section 6.2.2.A, the Planning Board, “…serves as the local planning agency 7 

in accordance with the Community Planning Act (2011) F.S. § 163.3161 et. Seq.” Pursuant to 8 

LUDC Section 6.2.2.D. “As the local planning agency, [the Board shall] … review proposed land 9 

development regulations, determine their consistency with the comprehensive plan, and make 10 

recommendations to the town council as to whether the regulations should be adopted.”  11 

 12 

If the Town Council approves the ordinance at 1st reading at a public hearing, the amendment will 13 

then be scheduled for a 2nd reading at a public hearing for adoption. 14 

 15 

BACKGROUND 16 

Town staff received a written request from the Ponce Inlet Community Center Board of Trustees 17 

earlier this year requesting that farmers markets be added as a permitted or special exception use 18 

in the P-I zoning district (Attachment I). 19 

 20 



LUDC Amendment – Section 2.40 Permitted Uses       Page 2 

Ord. 2024-06 

 

 

At the June 4, 2024 Special meeting with Planning Board and Town Council, the Council and 21 

Board discussed the request, after which the Town Council directed staff to move forward with 22 

the amendment (Attachment II). 23 

 24 

The Planning Board reviewed the proposed amendment at its regularly scheduled meeting on 25 

September 24, 2024. A motion to recommend approval of the amendment failed with two members 26 

voting in favor, two members voting against the motion, one member abstaining, and two members 27 

not present (Attachment III). 28 

 29 

DISCUSSION 30 

Farmers markets are defined in the LUDC as a temporary or occasional outdoor retail sale of farm 31 

produce or seafood, typically located within a parking lot or approved location in a public right-32 

of-way closed to vehicular traffic (Section 3.20.1.A). Farmers markets are only permitted by right 33 

in the PWD zoning district and are allowed as a minor special exception use in the B-1, B-2, and 34 

PUD zoning districts. In the P-I zoning classification, farmers markets are not a permitted or 35 

special exception use, although they may be allowed through a special event permit, limited to 12 36 

times per calendar year.  37 

 38 

According to LUDC Section 6.6.3, “A special exception is a use that would not be appropriate 39 

without restriction, but which, if controlled as to number, area, location or relation to the 40 

surrounding area, would promote the public health, safety and general welfare. These uses require 41 

more comprehensive review, and by their nature may necessitate specific conditions to mitigate 42 

any potential adverse impacts. Such uses may be permitted in a zoning district as a special 43 

exception only if identified as such in this code.” The Planning Board serves as the decision-44 

making authority for minor special exceptions (LUDC Section 6.4), while major special exceptions 45 

require a recommendation from the Planning Board and approval by the Town Council. 46 

 47 

The request to add farmers markets as a major special exception use to the P-I zoning district 48 

would provide additional locations for farmers markets to serve the local population. Seventeen 49 

(17) properties within the Town limits are zoned Public-Institutional (Attachment IV). Those 50 

properties include Town-owned facilities and parks, County-owned facilities and parks, and 51 

private scientific facilities.  52 

 53 

The Ponce Inlet Community Center Board of Trustees is in support of allowing a local farmers 54 

market to operate at the Community Center. Based on the safety, convenience and unique location, 55 

the Board has requested that farmers markets be added as a special exception use in the P-I zoning 56 

district in the LUDC, Section 2.40 Table of Permitted Uses. The Ponce Inlet Community Center 57 

is owned by the Town and is zoned P-I.  58 

 59 

The proposed amendment will add a major special exception notation, “SMJ” in the P-I zoning 60 

column in Section 2.40 of Table 2-5 (Table of Permitted Uses) under the section of the table titled 61 

“COMMUNITY FACILITIES AND PUBLIC ASSEMBLY”. Footnote [10] is included with  the 62 

“SMJ” notation, with the note itself located on the last row of Table 2-5. Footnote [10]  identifies 63 

certain P-I zoned properties from which this major special exception use is excluded. 64 

 65 



LUDC Amendment – Section 2.40 Permitted Uses       Page 3 

Ord. 2024-06 

 

 

The three P-I zoned properties where the farmers market would be allowed as a major special 66 

exception include the Ponce Inlet Community Center, Ponce Inlet Fire Rescue station, and 67 

Timothy Pollard Memorial Park.  68 

 69 

The 14 P-I zoned properties where the farmers market major special exception use would be 70 

excluded are: Batelle Institute properties (S. Atlantic & Sailfish Drive), Jesse Linzy Boat Ramp, 71 

Kay and Ayres Davies Lighthouse Park, Lighthouse Point Park, Marine Science Center, Pacetti 72 

Hotel Museum, Ponce de Leon Lighthouse and Museum, Ponce Inlet Historic Museum, Ponce 73 

Preserve, Port Orange lift station (adjacent to Ponce Inlet Community Center), Public Works 74 

facility, Timucuan Oaks Garden, and Winter Haven Park.   75 

 76 

It should be noted that adoption of this LUDC amendment does not automatically allow a farmers 77 

market at the Community Center. It only allows the Community Center Board to apply for a special 78 

exception at this location, which is a separate application process. As a major special exception, 79 

the application would first be reviewed by staff, then by the Planning Board for a recommendation, 80 

and then by the Town Council for a final decision.  81 

 82 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 83 

Staff reviewed the policies of the Comprehensive Plan and found the Ordinance will maintain 84 

consistency with the Town’s desired vision and direction. The Future Land Use Element of the 85 

Comprehensive plan classifies the P-I land use category as land used for quasi-public and private 86 

activities or facilities which will serve the public interest in an educational, recreational, or 87 

scientific context. 88 

 89 

RECOMMENDATION 90 

Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2024-06, amending Section 2.40 – Table of 91 

Permitted Uses to include farmers markets as a major special exception use in the P-I zoning 92 

district excluding 14 of the 17 P-I zoned properties. 93 

 94 

Attachments 95 

1. Ponce Inlet Community Center Board of Trustees letter 96 

2. Special meeting with Planning Board & Town Council minutes 97 

3. Draft Planning Board September 24, 2024 meeting minutes 98 

4. Ponce Inlet zoning map 99 

 100 



ATTACHMENT I 

PONCE INLET COMMUNITY CENTER BOARD OF TRUSTEES LETTER 

 

 

 
  



ATTACHMENT II 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

 

  



















ATTACHMENT III 

DRAFT PLANNING BOARD SEPTEMBER 24, 2024 MEETING MINUTES 

  



  

Planning Board Meeting Minutes September 24, 2024 Page 1 of 5 

Town of Ponce Inlet 
Planning Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 

September 24, 2024 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pursuant to proper notice, 1 

Chair Kaszuba called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, 4300 S. Atlantic 2 

Avenue, Ponce Inlet, FL, and led attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 3 

 4 

2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: 5 

 6 

Board members present: 7 

 Mr. Oebbecke, Seat #1 8 

 Mr. Kaszuba, Seat #2; Chair  9 

 Mr. Burge, Seat #3  10 

 Mr. Cannon, Seat #4 11 

Mr. Carney, Seat #5; Vice Chair 12 

Mr. Revak, Alternate #1 - Absent 13 

Mr. Young, Alternate #2 - Absent 14 

 15 

Staff present:    16 

 Ms. Dowling, HR Coordinator 17 

Ms. Fisher, Senior Planner 18 

 Ms. Gjessing, Assistant Deputy Clerk 19 

 Mr. Hooker, Code Compliance Manager 20 

 Ms. Hugler, Fire Department Office Manager 21 

 Attorney Knight, Town Attorney 22 

 Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 23 

 Ms. Rippey, Principal Planner 24 

 25 

Other officials present: 26 

 Mayor Paritsky 27 

 Councilmember Villanella 28 

  29 

3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA:  - Mr. Cannon moved to adopt the agenda as presented; 30 

seconded by Vice-Chair Carney. The motion PASSED by consensus, 5-0.31 

 32 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  33 

 34 

A. July 23, 2024 - Mr. Cannon moved to approve the July 23, 2024, meeting minutes 35 

as presented; seconded by Vice-Chair Carney. The motion PASSED by consensus, 5-0 36 

 37 

5. REPORT OF STAFF:  38 

A. Planning Division Reports – Mr. Lear announced there are three new employees 39 

in the Planning and Development Department: Bernadette Fisher, Senior Planner; Bailey 40 

Hornbuckle, Code Enforcement Administrative Assistant; and Heather Ricci, Permit Technician. 41 



  

Planning Board Meeting Minutes September 24, 2024 Page 2 of 5 

He announced a Town Hall landscaping project to replant the areas previously cleared by Public 42 

Works of the muscadine grape vines; planting is scheduled to begin in October. They will be 43 

installing 272 native plants varieties; once established, these plants will help reduce soil erosion, 44 

conserve water and water run-off, lower maintenance needs, and enhance wildlife habitat. 45 

Regarding the S. Peninsula Drive sidewalk, contractors were hired last month by Volusia County 46 

to conduct survey work from the northern town limits to Lighthouse Drive; the survey is expected 47 

to take approximately five months after which the county will engage an engineer for the design 48 

work. Chair Kaszuba asked if there is a completion date for the sidewalk project. Mr. Lear 49 

explained that will be finalized during the design phase; public meetings must still take place. 50 

 51 

B. Other Updates and/or Reports - There were no other updates. 52 

 53 

6. CORRESPONDENCE/DISCLOSURE OF EX-PARTE COMMUNICATION: Mr. 54 

Oebbecke stated he identified communications between Mr. Revak and himself that was forwarded 55 

to staff for the record regarding the ordinance change to the LUDC. Mr. Revak texted Mr. 56 

Oebbecke on September 23, 2024 at 5:28 PM indicating he had reviewed what was being presented 57 

and the only question he had was “with modification zoning district permitting uses with major 58 

special exceptions designation what are the next steps required to get the event approved?”. Mr. 59 

Oebbecke replied he received the message; Mr. Revak responded that he should probably bring up 60 

his thoughts and potentially identify an issue with Sunshine requirements. Vice-Chair Carney 61 

commented he went to the farmers market on Sunday and spoke with the ladies that run it who 62 

discussed their concerns with him; he requested they send their concerns to Ms. Rippey which they 63 

have done.  64 

 65 

7. HEARING OF CASES: None.  66 

  67 

8. BUSINESS ITEMS/PUBLIC HEARINGS:  68 

 69 

A. Ordinance 2024-XX (proposed), Amending the LUDC, Article 2 “Zoning 70 

Districts”, Section 2.40.1 “Interpretation of Uses and Structures Permitted, Table 2-5, 71 

“Table of Permitted Uses”; adding farmers markets as a major special exception to the 72 

public-institutional district. – Ms. Rippey explained this proposed ordinance has been drafted in 73 

response to the Town Council’s directive at the June 4, 2024 special meeting with the Planning 74 

Board and Town Council to amend the Land Use and Development Code (LUDC) to allow farmers 75 

markets as a special exception use in the Public Institutional (P-I) zoning district. She explained 76 

how amendments are adopted and reviewed the background of this proposed amendment to the 77 

LUDC. Currently, farmers markets are only permitted in the planned waterfront development 78 

(PWD) zoning district and allowed as a minor special exception use in the B-1, B-2, and PUD 79 

zoning districts. In the P-I zoning classification, farmers markets are not a permitted or special 80 

exception use, although they may be allowed through a special event permit, limited to 12 times 81 

per calendar year. According to LUDC Section 6.6.3, a special exception is a use that would not 82 

be appropriate without restriction, but which, if controlled as to number, area, location or relation 83 

to the surrounding area, would promote the public health, safety and general welfare. These uses 84 

require more comprehensive review, and by their nature may necessitate specific conditions to 85 

mitigate any potential adverse impacts. The Planning Board serves as the decision-making 86 

authority for minor special exceptions while major special exceptions require a recommendation 87 

from the Planning Board and approval by the Town Council. The request to add farmers markets 88 

as a special exception use to the P-I zoning district would provide additional locations for farmers 89 



  

Planning Board Meeting Minutes September 24, 2024 Page 3 of 5 

markets to serve the local population; 16 properties within the town limits are zoned Public-90 

Institutional. Those properties include town-owned facilities and parks, county-owned facilities 91 

and parks, and private scientific facilities. The Ponce Inlet Community Center Board of Trustees 92 

is in support of allowing a farmer’s market to operate at the Community Center. Based on the 93 

safety, convenience and unique location, the Board has requested that farmers markets be added 94 

as a special exception use. The proposed amendment will add a major special exception notation 95 

in the P-I zoning column in Section 2.40 of Table 2-5 (Table of Permitted Uses) under the section 96 

of the table in the LUDC titled “Community Facilities and Public Assembly”; footnote 10 is 97 

included in the notation and is located on the last row of Table 2-5 to identify P-I zoned properties 98 

excluded from the major special exception. The three P-I zoned properties proposed to be included 99 

as a major special exception are: Ponce Inlet Community Center, Ponce Inlet Fire Rescue, and 100 

Timothy Pollard Memorial Park which are located adjacent to each other on S. Peninsula Drive. 101 

The P-I zoned properties excluded from the special exception are Ponce Preserve, Timucuan Oaks 102 

Garden, Winter Haven Park, Public Works facility, Ponce Inlet Historic Museum, the two Batelle 103 

Institute properties, Jesse Linzy Boat Ramp, Marine Science Center, and Lighthouse Point Park. 104 

Originally, the Pacetti Hotel Museum, Ponce de Leon Lighthouse and Museum, Kay and Ayres 105 

Davies Lighthouse Park were included; however, after a discussion with Ed Gunn, Director of the 106 

Historic Lighthouse Preservation Association, they did not want that to occur on those properties 107 

and upon further review, there are some restrictions on those properties that are included in the 10-108 

acre location. As reviewed regarding the comprehensive plan, the ordinance will maintain 109 

consistency with the Town’s desired vision and direction. The Future Land Use Element of the 110 

comprehensive plan classifies the P-I land use category as land used for quasi-public and private 111 

activities or facilities which will serve the public interest in an educational, recreational, or 112 

scientific context. Staff recommends Ordinance 2024-##, amending Section 2.40 Table of 113 

Permitted Uses to include farmers markets as a major special exception use in the P-I zoning 114 

district excluding 13 of the 16 P-I zoned properties.  115 

 116 

Vice-Chair Carney referred to the email provided by Jair Kessler regarding this issue and 117 

her concern that Mr. Oebbecke has a conflict of interest as he is a Board Member of the Ponce 118 

Inlet Community Center. Attorney Knight explained Mr. Oebbecke will be recusing himself from 119 

the vote on this issue. Mr. Lear clarified that Ms. Kessler’s email was forwarded to the Planning 120 

Board members. Members discussed the proposed amendment, the use of the Fire Department and 121 

Timothy Pollard Park properties, other uses than farmers markets, and potential parking issues. 122 

They discussed it being a major versus minor exception; they discussed the properties that are 123 

excluded and why. Board members discussed communication submitted from the Ponce Inlet 124 

Community Center Board of Directors and their decision to allow farmers markets. Mr. Oebbecke 125 

explained on behalf of the PICCI Board of Directors why a weekly farmers market will be a benefit 126 

to the community and their reasons for supporting this amendment. Discussion continued. Chair 127 

Kaszuba opened public comment; seeing none, he closed public comment. Chair Kaszuba opened 128 

the floor for more Board discussion or a motion. Mr. Cannon asked for clarification of the nature 129 

of a farmer’s market; that it is an aggregation of vendors that are not beholden to anyone. There is 130 

no contractual agreement; it is only an assembly point. Mr. Oebbecke explained that is correct; 131 

there is no agreement, no contract is signed, and no fee is charged to the vendors; it is a place for 132 

them to congregate and sell their wares on a weekly basis. Mr. Lear clarified that the current 133 

farmers market operating at the North Turn Restaurant is under a special event permit that is 134 

allowable only 12 times per year. Mr. Cannon asked if this is approved, if there is anything that 135 

prohibited one market operating at will and another that is limited to 12 times per year.  Vice-Chair 136 

Carney commented that the Board members recently received training, and he would like guidance 137 

on what the threshold should be for an exception like this or what they should be looking for to 138 



  

Planning Board Meeting Minutes September 24, 2024 Page 4 of 5 

make this decision. Attorney Knight explained there is no set criteria, and this is not a quasi-judicial 139 

proceeding. Discussion continued; Attorney Knight explained the difference between a variance 140 

and a special exception. 141 

 142 

Mr. Cannon moved Ordinance 2024-XX, amending the LUDC, Article 2 “Zoning Districts”, 143 

Section 2.40.1 “Interpretation of Uses and Structures Permitted, Table 2-5, “Table of Permitted 144 

Uses” to include farmers markets as a major special exception to the public-institutional district 145 

excluding 13 of the 16 P-I zoned properties be forwarded to the Town Council with a 146 

recommendation of APPROVAL; seconded by Chair Kaszuba.  The motion FAILED 2-2, with the 147 

following vote: Mr. Cannon – yes; Chair Kaszuba – yes; Mr. Burge – no; Vice-Chair Carney – 148 

no. 149 

 150 

Mr. Oebbecke abstained, and his filed Form 8-B is attached as part of the record. 151 

 152 
B. Ordinance 2024-XX (proposed), Amending Articles 3, 8, and 9 of the LUDC to 153 

substitute references of Code Enforcement Board with Special Magistrate – Mr. Lear explained 154 
that this ordinance has been developed to implement the Town Council’s directive to shift from a Code 155 
Enforcement Board process to a Special Magistrate process. The amendment changes references found 156 
throughout the LUDC pertaining to enforcement of land development regulations. Chapter 162, Florida 157 
Statutes, authorizes the use of a Special Magistrate to enforce the city’s codes and ordinances. A 158 
Special Magistrate is an attorney and a member of the Florida bar who is appointed by the Town 159 
Council; he explained the duties of a Special Magistrate in relation to code enforcement. He noted that 160 
the Town of Ponce Inlet is the only municipality in Volusia County that exclusively uses a Code 161 
Enforcement Board rather than a Special Magistrate or a combination of both. At the July 18, 2024 162 
Town Council meeting, Council directed staff to proceed with transitioning from a Code Enforcement 163 
Board to a Special Magistrate. Staff recommends approval for this item. Vice-Chair Carney 164 
commented he has heard that Ponce Inlet code, as it refers to housing and short-term leasing, is 165 
grandfathered and could not be changed; he wants to ensure that when we update this, we do not lose 166 
the grandfather status. Mr. Lear explained that would not affect this. Attorney Knight explained it is 167 
not a substantive change where we would lose the grandfathering status. Chair Kaszuba asked how 168 
long the Town has had a Code Enforcement Board. Mr. Hooker explained the first Code Enforcement 169 
Board meeting was in the 1980’s.  The Town has had the same attorney since that time, Mr. Charles 170 
Cino, who has indicated he will likely retire within the next year. The Special Magistrate would start 171 
in January; Mr. Hooker explained the process and noted that the Special Magistrate would only serve 172 
the Town of Ponce Inlet. He explained that the Special Magistrate will be chosen through an RFP 173 
process. He explained the appeal process and why the Town is transitioning to a Special Magistrate. 174 
Chair Kaszuba opened public comment; seeing none, he closed public comment.  175 

 176 

Mr. Cannon moved that Ordinance 2024-XX amending Articles 3, 8, and 9 of the Land Use 177 

Development Code to substitute references of the Code Enforcement Board with Special 178 

Magistrate be forwarded to the Town Council with a recommendation of APPROVAL; seconded 179 

by Vice-Chair Carney.  The motion PASSED 5-0, with the following vote: Mr. Cannon – yes; Vice-180 

Chair Carney – yes; Mr. Oebbecke – yes; Chair Kaszuba – yes; Mr. Burge – yes. 181 

 182 

9. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: Chair Kaszuba opened public participation – hearing none, 183 

he closed public participation. 184 

 185 

10. BOARD DISCUSSION: None. 186 

 187 

11. ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 3:07 p.m. 188 



  

Planning Board Meeting Minutes September 24, 2024 Page 5 of 5 

Prepared and submitted by, 189 

 190 

Draft 191 

Debbie Stewart 192 

Assistant Deputy Clerk 193 

 194 



ATTACHMENT IV 

ZONING MAP 
 

 

 



 
 Ordinance 2024-06 

Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-06 1 

 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, 3 

F L O R I D A , AMENDING THE LAND USE AND 4 

DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE 2 “ZONING DISTRICTS”, 5 

SECTION 2.40.1 “INTERPRETATON OF USES AND 6 

STRUCTURES PERMITTED”, TABLE 2-5 “TABLE OF 7 

PERMITTED USES”; ADDING FARMERS MARKETS AS A 8 

MAJOR SPECIAL EXCEPTION USE TO THE PUBLIC-9 

INSTITUTIONAL ZONING DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR 10 

CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 11 

PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 12 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 13 

 14 

WHEREAS, Article 2 of the Ponce Inlet Land Use and Development Code (LUDC) 15 

establishes regulations for zoning districts and permitted uses by zoning district; and 16 

 17 

WHEREAS, Section 2.40 of Article 2 provides a table listing the permitted uses and 18 

special exception uses in each zoning district; and 19 

 20 

WHEREAS, the Town Council directed staff at Town Council Special Joint Meeting with 21 

the Planning Board held on June 4, 2024 to amend the LUDC to allow farmers markets as a special 22 

exception use in the Public-Institutional zoning district; and 23 

 24 

WHEREAS, the Planning Board, at its regularly scheduled meeting on September 24, 25 

2024, reviewed the Ordinance in its capacity as the Local Planning Agency, but failed to pass a 26 

motion recommending its approval to the Town Council; and  27 

 28 

WHEREAS, the Town Council affirms that this Ordinance is consistent with the 29 

Comprehensive Plan and is in the best interest of the public welfare of the Town; and  30 

 31 

WHEREAS, the Town has complied with all requirements and procedures of the LUDC 32 

and Florida law in processing, noticing, and advertising this Ordinance; and  33 

 34 

WHEREAS, this Ordinance is enacted under the general home rule and police powers of 35 

the Town of Ponce Inlet. 36 

 37 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 38 

TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA: 39 

 40 

NOTE:  Underlined words constitute additions to the Town of Ponce Inlet Land Use 41 

Development Code (LUDC) as amended by Ordinance 2024-06, strikethrough constitutes 42 

deletions, and asterisks (***) indicate an omission from the existing text of said LUDC as 43 

amended which is intended to remain unchanged. 44 

 45 

SECTION 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are hereby ratified and confirmed as being 46 



 
 Ordinance 2024-06 

Page 2 of 4 

true and correct and are hereby made a part of this Ordinance.  47 

 48 

SECTION 2. Incorporation of Amendments. The proposed amendments to Article 2, 49 

Section 2.40 of the Land Use and Development Code are attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit 50 

"A" and are hereby incorporated into the text of this Ordinance as though fully set forth herein 51 

verbatim as amendments to the Land Use and Development Code. 52 

 53 

SECTION 3. Codification. It is the intent of the Town Council of the Town of Ponce Inlet 54 

that the provisions of this Ordinance shall be codified. The codifier is granted broad and liberal 55 

authority in codifying the provisions of this Ordinance.  56 

 57 

SECTION 4. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, word, or 58 

provision of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 59 

competent jurisdiction, whether for substantive, procedural, or any other reason, such portion shall 60 

be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the 61 

validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 62 

 63 

SECTION 5. Conflicts. In any case where a provision of this Ordinance is found to be in 64 

conflict with a provision of any other ordinance of this Town, this Ordinance shall prevail. 65 

 66 

SECTION 6. Effective date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 67 

adoption by the Town Council of the Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida. 68 

 69 

It was moved by                                and seconded by                                that said Ordinance 70 

be passed on first reading. A roll call vote of the Town Council on said motion resulted as follows: 71 

    72 

Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1     73 

   Councilmember Milano, Seat #2    74 

   Councilmember White, Seat #3    75 

   Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4    76 

   Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5     77 

 78 

Approved on first reading this ___ day of ________ 2024. 79 

 80 

It was moved by _______________ and seconded by ______________ that said Ordinance 81 

be passed on second reading. A roll call vote of the Town Council on said motion resulted as 82 

follows: 83 

    84 

 85 

Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1     86 



 
 Ordinance 2024-06 

Page 3 of 4 

   Councilmember Milano, Seat #2    87 

   Councilmember White, Seat #3    88 

   Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4    89 

   Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5     90 

 91 

Approved and adopted on second reading this ____day of   2024. 92 

 93 

  Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida: 94 

 95 

 96 

  ________________________ 97 

  Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor 98 

ATTEST: 99 

 100 

 101 

_____________________________________ 102 

Kim Cherbano, CMC 103 

Town Clerk 104 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 Ordinance 2024-06 

Page 4 of 4 

EXHIBIT “A” 1 

 2 

ARTICLE 2 – ZONING DISTRICTS  3 

 4 

*** 5 

 6 

SECTION 2.40 TABLE OF PERMITTED USES 7 

 8 

2.40.1 Interpretation of uses and structures permitted. 9 

A use or structure that is not expressly permitted in a zoning district is prohibited.  10 

Table 2-5, Table of Permitted Uses  11 

USE MATRIX  

 

 P  =  Permitted use   

 

SMN  

=  Use requires minor special exception 

approval by planning board.  

 

 

SMJ  

=  Use requires major special exception 

approval by town council.  

See section 6.6.3, for Permitting Process  

 12 

 

 
 Residential  Commercial  Public and 

Open Space 

 Use 

Regulations 

Use  

R
-1

  

R
-2

  

R
-3

  

M
F

-1
  

M
F

-2
  

B
-1

  

B
-2

  

P
W

D
  

P
/I

  

C
  

P
U

D
  

 

*** 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES AND PUBLIC ASSEMBLY   

 ***             

  Farmers Market        SMN  SMN  P  SMJ[10]   SMN  Section 3.20 

 ***             

***   

[10]  Excludes Batelle Institute properties, Jesse Linzy Boat Ramp, Kay and Ayres Davies Lighthouse 

Park, Lighthouse Point Park, Marine Science Center, Pacetti Hotel Museum, Ponce de Leon Lighthouse 

and Museum, Ponce Inlet Historic Museum, Ponce Preserve, Port Orange Lift Station (adjacent to Ponce 

Inlet Community Center), Public Works Facility, Timucuan Oaks Garden and Winter Haven Park.  

 

 13 

*** 14 



 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic: Ordinance 2024-07 – 1st reading – Amending Chapters 1, 2, 6, 10, 

18, 34, 42, 46, 51, 62, 66, 70, 74, 78 and 82 of the Code of 
Ordinances to substitute references of the Code Enforcement 
Board with Special Magistrate. 

 
Summary:  The attached ordinance has been created to fulfill the Town 

Council’s directive to transition from a Code Enforcement 
Board to a Special Magistrate hired by the Town. The 
amendment modifies references throughout the Code of 
Ordinances related to the enforcement process for various 
regulations. 

  
 

Suggested motion:  Staff recommends approval of proposed Ordinance 
2024-07, amending Chapter 1, 2, 6, 10, 18, 34, 42, 
46, 51, 62, 66, 70, 74, 78 and 82 of the Code of 
Ordinances to substitute references of the Code 
Enforcement Board with Special Magistrate.  

 
 
Requested by:   Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 
 
 

 Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 10/17/2024 

Agenda Item:   11-B 



 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring, and fair in delivering community excellence  
while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

 
To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager  
 

From: Darren Lear, AICP, Planning & Development Director 
 
Date: October 8, 2024 
 
Subject: Ord. No. 2024-07 – Amending Chapters 1, 2, 6, 10, 18, 34, 42, 46, 51, 62, 66, 70, 74, 

78 and 82 of the Code of Ordinances to substitute references of the Code Enforcement 
Board with Special Magistrate. 

 
 

MEETING DATE: October 17, 2024 
 

 
INTRODUCTION 1 
This proposed ordinance has been created to fulfill the Town Council's directive to transition from 2 
a code enforcement system that relies on an appointed volunteer board to a special magistrate hired 3 
by the Town. The amendment modifies references throughout the Code of Ordinances related to 4 
the enforcement process for various regulations. Modifications to the code enforcement board 5 
references in the Land Use Development Code will be handled in a separate ordinance. 6 
 7 
BACKGROUND 8 
In June 2024, Town staff conducted a survey of 16 Volusia County agencies regarding their 9 
methods for prosecuting code cases. The findings indicated that the Town of Ponce Inlet is the 10 
only municipality that relies solely on a Code Enforcement Board, rather than a special magistrate 11 
or a combination of both. During the Town Council meeting on July 18, 2024, the Council directed 12 
staff to move forward with transitioning from the current code enforcement process using an 13 
appointed volunteer board to a Special Magistrate enforcement process. 14 
 15 
DISCUSSION 16 
Florida Statutes Chapter 162 outlines the code enforcement process for municipalities in Florida. 17 
In the early 2000s, reforms were introduced to streamline this process by incorporating the role of 18 
a hearing officer, commonly known as a special magistrate, into the statute. Over the past two 19 
decades, an increasing number of agencies have shifted from traditional code boards to employing 20 
special magistrates for code enforcement matters. 21 



The special magistrate was introduced to address several concerns associated with the traditional 22 
Code Enforcement Board process, including: 23 

• Lack of Volunteers: Difficulty in recruiting and maintaining sufficient board members. 24 
• Attendance Requirements: Challenges in meeting attendance requirements for board 25 

members. 26 
• Expertise Gaps: Insufficient expertise in specific subject areas relevant to code violations. 27 
• Property Visits: Board members visiting violating properties and engaging with property 28 

owners prior to hearings. 29 
• Post-Violation Assistance: Board members personally assisting violators in correcting 30 

issues after violations were identified. 31 
• Ex-Parte Communications: Failure to properly identify and manage ex-parte 32 

communications. 33 
• Sunshine Law Violations: Issues with compliance with Sunshine Law regulations. 34 

 35 
Chapter 162 of the Florida Statutes, as amended, allows for the use of a Special Magistrate to 36 
enforce the City's codes and ordinances. “A charter county, a noncharter county, or a municipality 37 
may, by ordinance, adopt an alternate code enforcement system that gives code enforcement 38 
boards or special magistrates designated by the local governing body, or both, the authority to 39 
hold hearings and assess fines against violators of the respective county or municipal codes and 40 
ordinances. A special magistrate shall have the same status as an enforcement board under this 41 
chapter...” 42 
 43 
The proposed amendments, particularly in Chapter 2 “Administration,” include but are not limited 44 
to the following: 45 
 46 

• Defining the role of a special magistrate. 47 
• Updating procedures and clarifying powers and duties. 48 
• Streamlining and revising existing language. 49 

 50 
Recommendation 51 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2024-07, amending Chapters 1, 2, 6, 10, 18, 34, 42, 52 
46, 51, 62, 66, 70, 74, 78 and 82 of the Code of Ordinances to substitute references of the Code 53 
Enforcement Board with Special Magistrate. 54 



















































 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic:  Ordinance 2024-08 – 1st reading – Amending Articles 3, 8, and 9 

of the Land Use and Development Code to substitute references 
of the Code Enforcement Board with Special Magistrate. 

 
Summary:  The attached ordinance has been created to fulfill the Town 

Council’s directive to transition from a Code Enforcement 
Board to a Special Magistrate hired by the Town. The 
amendment changes these references found throughout the 
Land Use and Development Code (LUDC) pertaining to the 
enforcement of land development regulations.  

 
 

Suggested motion:  Staff recommends approval of proposed Ordinance 
2024-08, amending Articles 3, 8, and 9 of the Land 
Use and Development Code to substitute references 
of the Code Enforcement Board with Special 
Magistrate. 

 
 
Requested by:   Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 
 
 

 Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 10/17/2024 

Agenda Item:   11-C 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring, and fair in delivering community excellence  
while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

 
To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager  
 

From: Darren Lear, AICP, Planning & Development Director 
 
Date: October 8, 2024 
 
Subject: Ord. No. 2024-08 – Amending Articles 3, 8, and 9 of the Land Use and Development 

Code to substitute references of the Code Enforcement Board with Special Magistrate. 
 
 

MEETING DATE: October 17, 2024 
 

 
INTRODUCTION 1 
This proposed ordinance has been developed to implement the Town Council's directive to shift 2 
from a code enforcement process utilizing an appointed volunteer board to a special magistrate 3 
hired by the Town. The amendment changes these references found throughout the Land Use and 4 
Development Code (LUDC) pertaining to the enforcement of land development regulations. 5 
 6 
AUTHORITY AND PROCESS 7 
According to Section 6.6.2 of the LUDC, the procedures for a text amendment are as follows: 8 
 9 

• Initiation, submission, and fees (if applicable) 10 
• Staff review and referral 11 
• Public notice 12 
• Action by review and decision-making authorities 13 

 14 
Section 6.6.2 specifies that “the town council shall refer the application to the planning board to 15 
review and recommend approval, approval with conditions, or denial.” Section 6.2.2 establishes 16 
the planning board as the local planning agency for the Town in accordance with the Community 17 
Planning Act (2011) F.S. § 163.3161 et seq. 18 
 19 
Chapter 163 of the Florida Statutes indicates that one of the local planning agency’s 20 
responsibilities is to “review proposed land development regulations, land development codes, or 21 
amendments, and make recommendations to the governing body regarding the proposal’s 22 
consistency with the adopted comprehensive plan, or any of its elements or portions. This applies 23 
when the local planning agency serves as the land development regulation commission or when 24 



Page 2 of 3 
 

the local government requires a review by both the local planning agency and the land development 25 
regulation commission.” 26 
 27 
The Planning Board reviewed and unanimously approved the proposed amendment at its regularly 28 
scheduled meeting on September 24, 2024. Changes to the code enforcement process itself will be 29 
addressed in a separate ordinance amendment to the Code of Ordinances. Both ordinances related 30 
to this enforcement transition will be presented to the Town Council together. 31 
 32 
BACKGROUND 33 
A recent survey conducted by Town staff in June 2024 examined the approaches of 16 Volusia 34 
County agencies for prosecuting code cases. The survey revealed that the Town of Ponce Inlet is 35 
the only municipality that exclusively uses a Code Enforcement Board rather than a special 36 
magistrate or combination of the two. At the Town Council meeting on July 18, 2024, the Council 37 
directed staff to proceed with transitioning from a code enforcement process utilizing an appointed 38 
volunteer board  to a Special Magistrate enforcement process. 39 
 40 
DISCUSSION 41 
Florida Statute Chapter 162 outlines the code enforcement process for municipalities in Florida. 42 
In the early 2000s, reforms were introduced to streamline the process by incorporating the role of 43 
a hearing officer, commonly referred to as a special magistrate, into the statute. Over the past two 44 
decades, a growing number of agencies have transitioned from traditional code boards to using 45 
these special magistrates to handle code enforcement matters. 46 

The special magistrate was introduced to address several concerns associated with the traditional 47 
Code Enforcement Board process, including: 48 

• Lack of Volunteers: Difficulty in recruiting and maintaining sufficient board members. 49 
• Attendance Requirements: Challenges in meeting attendance requirements for board 50 

members. 51 
• Expertise Gaps: Insufficient expertise in specific subject areas relevant to code violations. 52 
• Property Visits: Board members visiting violating properties and engaging with property 53 

owners prior to hearings. 54 
• Post-Violation Assistance: Board members personally assisting violators in correcting 55 

issues after violations were identified. 56 
• Ex-Parte Communications: Failure to properly identify and manage ex-parte 57 

communications. 58 
• Sunshine Law Violations: Issues with compliance with Sunshine Law regulations. 59 

Chapter 162, Florida Statutes, as amended, authorizes the use of a Special Magistrate to enforce 60 
the City's codes and ordinances, “A charter county, a noncharter county, or a municipality may, 61 
by ordinance, adopt an alternate code enforcement system that gives code enforcement boards or 62 
special magistrates designated by the local governing body, or both, the authority to hold hearings 63 
and assess fines against violators of the respective county or municipal codes and ordinances. A 64 
special magistrate shall have the same status as an enforcement board under this chapter...” 65 
 66 



Page 3 of 3 
 

The proposed amendments substitute references to the Code Enforcement Board with a Special 67 
Magistrate in LUCD Article 3 “Use Regulations,” Article 8 “Enforcement,” and Article 9 68 
“Definitions and Rules of Interpretation.” 69 
 70 
Comprehensive Plan 71 
Staff reviewed the policies of the Comprehensive Plan and found the proposed amendments will 72 
not conflict with any goal, objective, or policy, and will maintain consistency with the Town’s 73 
desired vision and direction.  74 
 75 
Recommendation 76 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2024-08, amending Articles 3, 8, and 9 of the LUDC 77 
to substitute references of the Code Enforcement Board with Special Magistrate. 78 















 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic:    Lien abatement request for Guada Joseph – 4745 South Atlantic 

Avenue, Unit 404.  

 
Summary:   Please see attached staff report and supporting documents. 

 
Suggested motion:   At Council’s discretion. 

 
Requested by:   Mr. Hooker, Code Compliance Manager 
   Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 

  
Approved by:   Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 10/17/2024 

Agenda Item:   13-A 































































 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic: Discussion – Recommendation to abolish restrictions on 

panhandling and aggressive solicitation following ruling by the 
U.S. District Court of the Middle District of Florida.   

 
Summary:   Please see attached staff report and supporting documents. 

 
Suggested motion:   At Council’s discretion. 

 
Requested by:   Chief Glazier, Police Chief 

  
Approved by:   Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 10/17/2024 

Agenda Item:   13-B 



Ponce Inlet Police Department 
4301 S. Peninsula Drive, Ponce Inlet, FL 32127 

 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

PONCE INLET POLICE DEPARTMENT – OFFICE OF THE POLICE CHIEF 
 

THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET STAFF SHALL BE PROFESSIONAL, CARING, AND 
 FAIR IN DELIVERING COMMUNITY EXCELLENCE WHILE ENSURING PONCE 
 INLET CITIZENS OBTAIN THE GREATEST VALUE FOR THEIR TAX DOLLAR. 

 
TO:  Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
 
FROM: Jeff Glazier, Police Chief 
 
DATE:  September 24, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion - Recommendation to abolish restrictions on panhandling and 

aggressive solicitation following ruling by the U.S. District Court 
________________________________________________________________ 
 

Meeting Date: October 17, 2024 
________________________________________________________________ 
 

Recently, the Federal District Court for the Middle District of Florida held the City of Daytona 
Beach’s panhandling ordinance unconstitutional and ruled the city was liable for monetary 
damages. The Town of Ponce Inlet’s panhandling ordinance is less restrictive, but still 
problematic given the Daytona decision. 
 
Attached to this report is an analysis of the Ponce Inlet panhandling regulations conducted 
by Shepard, Smith, Kohlmyer, and Hand, P.A. (Attachment 1). They recommend 
abolishing the code sections on aggressive solicitation and, instead, relying on standard 
criminal statutes governing criminal mischief, disorderly conduct, open container violations, 
public intoxication, and assault. These statutes do not typically create free speech concerns 
and would be enforceable by the Ponce Inlet Police Department. Copies of the criminal 
regulations and statutes are attached for reference (Attachment 2).  
 
The Ponce Inlet Police Department recommends following the guidance of the Shepard, 
Smith, Kohlmyer and Hand, P.A. report and abolish Code of Ordinances Sec. 50-1 
(Definitions) & Sec. 50-2 (Aggressive Solicitation Prohibited). If so directed by the Town 
Council, staff will prepare an ordinance for the Council’s review and approval at a future 
Council meeting. For now, a draft version of the code amendment is also attached 
(Attachment 3). 
 
 



 

2300 Maitland Center Parkway, Suite 100, Maitland, FL 32751 
T: (407) 622-1772 W: www.shepardfirm.com 

 ATTACHMENT 1 

Memo 
To: Chief Jeff Glazier 

From: Jerry Hanberry 

CC: Cliff Shepard 

Issue: Should Ordinance 50-1 of Town of Ponce Inlet be modified considering the recent 

decision in Dennis Scott, et al. v. City of Daytona Beach Florida, Case No.: 6:22-cv-2192-

WWB-RMN. 

Discussion: 

Daytona Beach’s panhandling ordinance recently received heavy criticism from the 

Federal District Court for the Middle District of Florida, where the court found in favor of 

homeless plaintiffs in a 42 U.S.C. §1983 civil rights case. The court held Daytona Beach’s 

ordinance unconstitutional and ruled that the city was also liable for damages in an amount 

to be determined at a later trial. This holding is part of a larger group of cases reaching 

similar conclusions. See, e.g., Messina v. City of Fort Lauderdale, 2024 U.S. Dist. Lexis 

14120, *15(S.D. Fla. Jan. 26, 2024); Messina v. City of Fort Lauderdale 546 F. Supp. 3d 1227; 

Homeless Helping Homeless, Inc. v. City of Tampa, 2016 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 103204, (M.D. Fla. 

Aug. 5, 2016); Reed v. Town of Gilbert, 576 US. 155, 163, 135 S. Ct. 2218, 192 L.Ed. 236 

(2015). 

 Accordingly, the Town’s should consider revising its current solicitation ordinances 
to address the holdings in the Daytona Beach case. Additionally, training police officers to 

Shepard, Smith, 
Kohlmyer & Hand, P.A. 



 

 
 

 
 

2 

enforce other established criminal violations might be a better way to avoid the risks of 
becoming the next Daytona Beach. 

The Daytona Beach ordinances the Middle District addressed are as follows: 

66-1(c)(1)(c) Prohibited conduct, proximity and location restrictions. 

(1) It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in aggressive panhandling on any sidewalk, 

highway, street, roadway, right-of-way, parking lot, park, or other public or semi-public 

area or in any public building lobby, entranceway, plaza or common area, public forum or 

limited public forum within the city limits of the City of Daytona Beach. 

The Court also addressed 66-1(c)(3)-(4): 

(3) It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in panhandling when either the person 

engaged in panhandling or the panhandler or the person being panhandled, is located in, 

on or at the following locations: 

a. Within 20 feet, in any direction, from any entrance or exit of commercially zoned 

property; 

b. Within 20 feet, in any direction, of any bus or trolley stop or any public transportation 

facility; 

c. Within 20 feet, in any direction, of an automated teller machine or any electronic 

information processing device which accepts or dispenses cash in connection with a 

credit, deposit or convenience account with a financial institution; 

d. Within 20 feet, in any direction, of any parking lot, parking garage, parking meter or 

parking pay station owned or operated by the city; 



 

 
 

 
 

3 

e. Within 20 feet, in any direction, of any public restroom owned and operated by a 

governmental agency; 

f. Within 100 feet, in any direction, of any daycare or school, including pre-kindergarten 

through grade 12; 

g. Within 150 feet of any signalized intersection of: 1) arterial roads; 2) collector roads; 

and 3) arterial and collector roads; 

h. Occurring on the boardwalk as visibly defined by the map at the end of this section. 

(4) It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in the following prohibited conduct: 

a. Approach an operator or other occupant of a motor vehicle for the purpose of 

panhandling, soliciting or begging, or offering to perform a service in connection with 

such vehicle, or otherwise soliciting the sale of goods or services, if such panhandling, 

soliciting or begging is done in an aggressive manner; 

b. Panhandle or solicit or beg at any lawfully permitted outdoor dining area 

amphitheater, amphitheater seating area, playground or lawfully permitted outdoor 

merchandise area, provided such areas are in active use at the time; 

c. Panhandle, solicit or beg at any transit stop or taxi stand or in a public transit vehicle; 

d. Panhandle, solicit or beg while the person or persons being solicited is standing in 

line waiting to be admitted to a commercial establishment; 

e. Panhandle, solicit or beg by touching the person or persons being solicited without 

that person's consent; 

f. Panhandle, solicit or beg with the use of profane or abusive language during the 

solicitation or following an unsuccessful solicitation; 



 

 
 

 
 

4 

g. Panhandle, solicit or beg by or with the use of any gesture or act intended to cause a 

reasonable person to be fearful of the solicitor or feel compelled to accede to the 

solicitation; 

h. Panhandle, solicit or beg while under the influence of alcohol or after having illegally 

used any controlled substance, as defined in chapter 893 of the Florida Criminal 

Statutes; or 

i. Panhandle, solicit or beg after dark. 

The Daytona Beach panhandling ordinances are specific and extensive. The Town of 

Ponce Inlet’s code is broader and briefer by comparison but still problematic based on the 

Daytona decision. 

Ponce Inlet ordinances. 

50-1 Defines both Aggressive Solicitation and the term Solicit: 

Sec. 50-1. - Definitions. 

For the purposes of this article, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings 

ascribed to them as follows: 

Aggressive solicitation means: 

(a) To solicit a person in such a manner as would cause a reasonable person to believe 

that the person is being threatened with imminent bodily injury or the commission of 

a criminal act upon the person approached or another person in the solicited person's 

company, or upon property in the person's immediate possession (for example, 

placing oneself within two feet of a solicited person and/or using abusive or profane 

language in a loud voice while demanding or requesting money); or 



 

 
 

 
 

5 

(b) To maintain contact with a solicited person and continue demanding, requesting or 

begging for money or a donation of valuable property or a monetary transaction 

after the solicited person has made a negative response to an initial demand or 

request (for example, walking in front of, next to, or behind a solicited person while 

continuing to demand, request or beg for money or a transaction from that person 

after that person has refused); or 

(c) To obstruct, block or impede either individually or as part of a group of persons, the 

passage or free movement of a solicited person or a person in the company of a 

solicited person, including persons on foot, on bicycles, in wheelchairs or operating 

motor vehicles or persons attempting to enter or exit motor vehicles (for example, 

walking, standing, sitting, lying, or placing an object in such a manner as to block 

passage of another person or vehicle, or to require another person or driver of a 

vehicle to take evasive action to avoid physical contact); or 

(d) To touch or cause physical contact or to threaten to touch or cause physical contact 

to a solicited person or a person in the company of a solicited person, or to touch any 

vehicle occupied by a solicited person or by a person in the company of the solicited 

person, without the person's consent; or 

(e) To engage in conduct that would reasonably be construed as intended to intimidate, 

compel or force a solicited person to accede to demands. 

Solicit means to beg or make any demand or request in person for an immediate donation 

or transaction of money or some other article of value from another person. Solicitation is 

considered as having taken place regardless of whether the person making the solicitation 

received any contribution or successfully instigated a transaction. A solicitation may be 



 

 
 

 
 

6 

made by explicit language or by implication, such as by holding or displaying an open can 

or container of any sort with any indication on the can or container or by the solicitor that 

money or some other article of value is being requested. 

For this memo, no distinction is made between “solicitation” and “panhandling” 

because if a similar 42 USC § 1983 case was filed against Ponce Inlet, the issues and 

arguments made against the Town would mirror those made in the Daytona Beach case. 

Comparison between the Daytona Code and the Ponce Inlet Code. 

Location Restrictions: 

Daytona’s ordinance identifies a wide area where panhandling is completely 

prohibited and restricts “aggressive panhandling” in those remaining areas where 

panhandling is legal. This prohibition was struck down in the Daytona case. 

Ponce Inlet does not have any location restrictions on standard solicitation, but 

instead prohibits “all aggressive solicitation within the Town of Ponce Inlet.” However, the 

ordinance applies to the entire Town and might be treated similarly in a legal challenge for 

that reason. 

The Daytona case illustrates the problem with ordinances so restrictive as to prevent 

any activity deemed aggressive panhandling anywhere within the Town. If the Ponce Inlet 

ordinance regarding aggressive solicitation is challenged and found to be equivalent to 

panhandling, with the entire town limits as a restricted area, it could be subject to a similar 

injunction against enforcement. Daytona Beach has so many places listed in their 

ordinance there are very few if any geographic places free speech activities such as 

panhandling can occur. Ponce Inlet has prohibited activity it deems aggressive in the entire 

town. The similarities could be a problem.    



 

 
 

 
 

7 

Conduct-Based Restrictions: 

Daytona’s ordinances define panhandling to include a demand or request for money 

or something of value. This includes charities and charitable organizations. It can include 

paying for an item far more than its value. Begging and Soliciting are included in this 

definition of panhandling. 

Ponce Inlet defines panhandling under the general term Solicitation, which is much 

narrower and is defined solely by begging or making any demand or request in person for 

an immediate donation or transaction of money or some other article of value from 

another person. A solicitation may be made by explicit language or by implication, such as 

by holding or displaying an open can or container of any sort with any indication on the 

can or container or by the solicitor that money or some other article of value is being 

requested. 

The Daytona case describes its ordinances as overly inclusive. Specifically, the conduct-

based provisions include much more protected speech activity than is necessary to 

promote public safety, including speech that is entirely innocuous. If the conduct-based 

provisions applied only to tortious or criminal conduct, Daytona might have prevailed. 

However, Daytona’s conduct-based provisions effectively prohibited any repeated request 

for charity, which does nothing to promote public safety. § 66-1(b)(2). Accordingly, the 

court found that the ordinance was unconstitutional. 

The Ponce Inlet ordinance could be similarly scrutinized and found to be 

overinclusive and lacking in any guidance that protects public charity, specifically when it 

comes to panhandler’s repeated requests for charity which do not endanger public safety. 



 

 
 

 
 

8 

The bottom line is that content-based restrictions like those highlighted in the 

Daytona case are subject to strict scrutiny by the courts. “To survive strict scrutiny, 

Defendant bears the burden of showing the challenged provisions are narrowly tailored to 

serve compelling state interests.” Reed, 576 U.S. at163. Defendant must establish that the 

asserted harms are “real, not merely conjectural, and that the regulation will in fact 

alleviate these harms in a direct and material way.” Turner Broad. Sys., Inc. v. Fed. 

Commc’ns Comm’n, 512 U.S. 622, 664 (1994). Laws can fail narrow tailoring when they are 

over-inclusive, i.e., they “burden substantially more speech than is necessary to further the 

government’s legitimate interests.” McCullen v. Coakley, 573 U.S. 464, 486 (2014) 

(quotation omitted). Similarly, a law can fail narrow tailoring as underinclusive when the 

law targets one type of speech, but not another that poses the same danger to the 

government’s asserted interest. See Reed, 576 U.S. at 172. 

The Daytona ordinances went too far in their restrictions on aggressive panhandling. 

Unfortunately, the Ponce Inlet ordinance may be subject to a similar analysis because 

panhandling is considered a form of protected speech under the First Amendment. 

Our recommendation would be to redefine aggressive solicitation so that it is clear 

what would be prohibited and is in line with the holdings in the Daytona case.  

Another approach, which avoids the difficulties inherent in crafting a legal 

panhandling ordinance, might be to rely on standard criminal statutes governing criminal 

mischief, disorderly conduct, open container violations, public intoxication, assault and 

battery, etcetera. These statutes definitively protect the general welfare of the public but 

do not typically create free speech concerns that panhandling and solicitation ordinances 

do. 



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

Criminal Statutes 
 
PONCE INLET CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 
Sec. 42-33 - Urinating or defecating in public 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to urinate or defecate in a public place other than one 
set aside and designated for that particular purpose. 

(b) Violators of this section shall be subject to criminal prosecution or code enforcement 
board prosecution and subject to the penalties provided in section 1-11(a)(2) or 1-
11(a)(3), respectively. 

 
46-3 - Behavior prohibited within public parks 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to do any one or more of the following in any town 
park: 
(1) Violate any Federal or Florida statute or any other provision of this Code, including 

violating park hours as defined in section 46-2 of the Code. 
(2) Interfere with, hinder or physically oppose any law enforcement officer or cultural 

services personnel in the discharge of their duties, including the enforcement of 
the park rules and regulations. 

(3) Post any flyers or signs except as approved by the cultural services manager or 
designee, either by policy or specific permission. 

(4) Use any portable cooking equipment except in areas designated for that purpose 
within Davies Lighthouse Park. Within designated areas, only propane and electric 
portable equipment is permitted. 

(5) Sleep on any park property, except for children under the age of six. 
(6) Mark, deface, tamper with, damage, displace or remove any park property or any 

plant life or landscape element within a park. 
(7) Construct or erect any temporary or permanent structure. 
(8) Intentionally disturb or interfere with wildlife without reasonable justification. 
(9) Litter or otherwise dispose of refuse except in a receptacle provided for that 

purpose. 
(10) Smoke marijuana or tobacco. 
(11) Operate or fly a remote-controlled flying device except in areas designated for that 

purpose. 
(12) If bringing an animal into the park: 

i. Failing to keep the animal on a leash at all times. 
ii. Failing to keep the animal under control such that the animal intimidates 

other park attendees. 
iii. Failing to remove or dispose of any feces deposited by the animal within the 

park. 
(b) Special events within public parks shall require a permit issued in accordance 

with chapter 51 of this Code. 
(c) The following additional rules apply to athletic courts within town parks: 

https://library.municode.com/fl/ponce_inlet/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH1GEPR_S1-11GEPE
https://library.municode.com/fl/ponce_inlet/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH1GEPR_S1-11GEPE
https://library.municode.com/fl/ponce_inlet/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH1GEPR_S1-11GEPE
https://library.municode.com/fl/ponce_inlet/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH46PARE_ARTIINGE_S46-2PAHO
https://library.municode.com/fl/ponce_inlet/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH51SPEV


(1) No pets are allowed on the athletic courts. 
(2) No bicycling, rollerblading, or skateboarding on the courts. 
(3) Persons using the athletic courts without reservations shall yield to attendees with 

reservations. If an attendee with a reservation does not arrive to the court within 
ten minutes of their reservation start time, the reservation is void. 

(4) Persons using the athletic courts without reservations shall limit their time on the 
court to one hour. 

(d) Violations of the section shall be subject to code enforcement board, noncriminal and 
criminal prosecution under section 1-11. 

(e) In addition to the rules provided herein, the cultural services manager may promulgate 
additional rules for behavior within parks and publish such rules on the town's website. 
Violation of such rules shall provide a valid basis for a trespass warning as otherwise 
provided in the Code, but shall not subject the violator to other prosecution under the 
Code. 

 
 
FLORIDA STATUTES 
 
784.03 - Battery 
(1)(a) The offense of battery occurs when a person: 

1. Actually and intentionally touches or strikes another person against the will of the 
other; or 

2. Intentionally causes bodily harm to another person. 
(b) Except as provided in subsection (2) or subsection (3), a person who commits battery 
commits a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(2) A person who has one prior conviction for battery, aggravated battery, or felony battery 
and who commits any second or subsequent battery commits a felony of the third 
degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. For purposes of 
this subsection, “conviction” means a determination of guilt that is the result of a plea 
or a trial, regardless of whether adjudication is withheld or a plea of nolo contendere is 
entered. 

(3) A person who commits a battery in furtherance of a riot or an aggravated riot prohibited 
under s. 870.01 commits a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in 
s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or 775.084. 

 
784.011- Assault 

(1) An “assault” is an intentional, unlawful threat by word or act to do violence to the 
person of another, coupled with an apparent ability to do so, and doing some act which 
creates a well-founded fear in such other person that such violence is imminent. 

(2) Except as provided in subsection (3), a person who assaults another person commits a 
misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(3) A person who assaults another person in furtherance of a riot or an aggravated riot 
prohibited under s. 870.01 commits a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as 
provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

 

https://library.municode.com/fl/ponce_inlet/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH1GEPR_S1-11GEPE
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0700-0799/0775/Sections/0775.082.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0700-0799/0775/Sections/0775.083.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0700-0799/0775/Sections/0775.082.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0700-0799/0775/Sections/0775.083.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0700-0799/0775/Sections/0775.084.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0800-0899/0870/Sections/0870.01.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0700-0799/0775/Sections/0775.082.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0700-0799/0775/Sections/0775.083.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0700-0799/0775/Sections/0775.084.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0700-0799/0775/Sections/0775.082.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0700-0799/0775/Sections/0775.083.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0800-0899/0870/Sections/0870.01.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0700-0799/0775/Sections/0775.082.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0700-0799/0775/Sections/0775.083.html


877.03- Breach of Peace; Disorderly Conduct 
Whoever commits such acts as are of a nature to corrupt the public morals, or outrage the 
sense of public decency, or affect the peace and quiet of persons who may witness them, or 
engages in brawling or fighting, or engages in such conduct as to constitute a breach of the 
peace or disorderly conduct, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of the second degree, 
punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 
 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0700-0799/0775/Sections/0775.082.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0700-0799/0775/Sections/0775.083.html


ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Draft Amendments 
 
PONCE INLET CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 
Sec. 50-1. - Definitions. 
For the purposes of this article, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them as follows: 
 
Aggressive solicitation means: 

(a) To solicit a person in such a manner as would cause a reasonable person to believe that 
the person is being threatened with imminent bodily injury or the commission of a 
criminal act upon the person approached or another person in the solicited person's 
company, or upon property in the person's immediate possession (for example, placing 
oneself within two feet of a solicited person and/or using abusive or profane language in 
a loud voice while demanding or requesting money); or 

(b) To maintain contact with a solicited person and continue demanding, requesting or 
begging for money or a donation of valuable property or a monetary transaction after 
the solicited person has made a negative response to an initial demand or request (for 
example, walking in front of, next to, or behind a solicited person while continuing to 
demand, request or beg for money or a transaction from that person after that person 
has refused); or 

(c) To obstruct, block or impede either individually or as part of a group of persons, the 
passage or free movement of a solicited person or a person in the company of a 
solicited person, including persons on foot, on bicycles, in wheelchairs or operating 
motor vehicles or persons attempting to enter or exit motor vehicles (for example, 
walking, standing, sitting, lying, or placing an object in such a manner as to block 
passage of another person or vehicle, or to require another person or driver of a vehicle 
to take evasive action to avoid physical contact); or 

(d) To touch or cause physical contact or to threaten to touch or cause physical contact to 
a solicited person or a person in the company of a solicited person, or to touch any 
vehicle occupied by a solicited person or by a person in the company of the solicited 
person, without the person's consent; or 

(e) To engage in conduct that would reasonably be construed as intended to intimidate, 
compel or force a solicited person to accede to demands. 

 
Solicit means: to beg or make any demand or request in person for an immediate donation or 
transaction of money or some other article of value from another person. Solicitation is 
considered as having taken place regardless of whether the person making the solicitation 
received any contribution or successfully instigated a transaction. A solicitation may be made 
by explicit language or by implication, such as by holding or displaying an open can or 
container of any sort with any indication on the can or container or by the solicitor that money 
or some other article of value is being requested. 
 



Sec. 50-2. - Aggressive solicitation prohibited. 
(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in aggressive solicitation within the Town of 

Ponce Inlet. 
(b) Violators of this section shall be subject to criminal prosecution and the penalties 

provided in section 1-11(a)(2) of this Code. 
 
Secs. 50-13—50-30. - Reserved. 
 



 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
 
Topic:   From the Town Manager 
 
Summary:   Please see attached report. 
 
Requested by:   Mr. Disher, Town Manager 
 
Approved by:   Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 10/17/2024 

Agenda Item:   15 



 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

 
To: Town Council   
From: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
Date: October 10, 2024 
Subject: Town Manager’s Report 
             
 

MEETING DATE: October 17, 2024 
 

 
1. At its October 15, 2024 meeting, the County Council will consider the following: 

• Item K - Ponce Inlet Annual Veterans Christmas Parade Request for Lighthouse Point 
Park Access Fee Waiver Use of the Park for Parade Staging. This is a request from the  
Ponce Inlet Veterans Memorial Association, in partnership with the Town of Ponce Inlet, 
to stage the parade vehicles inside the western entrance of the park. 

• Item 03 – Resolution 2024-XX, providing a limited one-time waiver of the 4ft artificial 
dune restoration and replanting requirements for coastal properties impacted by 
Hurricanes Ian and Nicole. This item was originally drafted as an ordinance for a 
permanent waiver on the County’s October 1, 2024 agenda, but then pulled for 
procedural reasons, given its limited, storm-specific nature. 

2. Public Works update:  
• The repair of the boardwalk pilings at Ponce Preserve is set to begin in the next few 

weeks. The contractor will be assessing the pilings again once Hurricane Milton passes. 
The permit for the work has been submitted and is under review.  

• Now that the contractor has been hired, the excavation maintenance work for the Town’s 
retention ponds at Inlet Point and Beach Street is expected to begin later this month. Once 
finished, the same contractor will begin work on installing the one-way stormwater 
valves on low-lying streets 

3. The Fire Department is nearing the end of its effort to become an accredited agency. The 
final report has been submitted to the Center for Public Safety Excellence, with the goal of 
completing the process by the end of this calendar year. 

 

 

https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20241015/agenda.htm
https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20241015/Item-K-12227.pdf
https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20241015/Item-03-12232.pdf


2 

4. Septic-to-sewer update: 

• We now have received the fully executed loan agreement from FDEP. The Town was 
one of the first municipalities to receive the loan agreement for SAHFI funding. 

• The design documents are expected to be completed and approved by FDEP in January 
2025. 

• The Phase 1 formal bid process is expected to begin in February 2025.   

5. Building permit activity:  
  Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total Avg 
Permit 
applications 94 112 112 111 142 124 102 115 89    1,001 111 

Permits 
issued 85 118 113 96 147 119 121 88 95    982 109 

Plan 
reviews 85 118 113 118 137 115 120 117 90    1,018 113 

Inspections 243 242 274 292 254 238 255 258 210    2,266 252 
 
* * * 

 


	REGULAR MEETING
	item 8-A.pdf
	ADP92EA.tmp
	Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida
	Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor
	ATTEST:


	item 8-B.pdf
	A78 MINI PUMPER DISPOSAL.pdf
	Exhibit D - FA Disposal Form


	item 8-C.pdf
	Request to retain Engine as Reserve.pdf
	ADPFD4F.tmp
	Increased Property Damage:
	 Fire Spread: Fires double in size every minute. A delayed response allows the fire to intensify and spread, causing more extensive structural damage over time.
	 Higher Costs: The longer a fire burns unchecked, the more damage is done, leading to significantly higher repair or rebuilding costs.
	 Loss of Property: Irreplaceable personal belongings may be completely destroyed. A fire in one of the Town’s historical structures could lead to the loss of unique historic artifacts.
	Greater Risk to Life and Safety:
	 Casualties: A delayed response increases the risk of injuries or fatalities to building occupants, as they have less time to evacuate.
	 Firefighter Safety: A more advanced fire can pose greater hazards to responding firefighters, requiring more aggressive firefighting tactics, which come with increased risk.
	 Evacuation Challenges: As the fire grows, it may block potential exit routes, complicating evacuation efforts for trapped individuals.
	Economic Consequences/Loss of Business: If the structure is a commercial property, a slow response can result in more significant downtime, leading to lost income for businesses.
	 Insurance Costs: Higher property damage often leads to increased insurance claims, which can drive up premiums for the property owner and potentially for the community as a whole.
	 Rebuilding Delays: Extensive damage may take longer to repair, delaying the recovery of the affected area.
	Community Impact: A slow response time for Emergency Medical Services (EMS) calls can have several adverse impacts, many of which can significantly affect patient outcomes and community trust in public safety systems. These impacts include:
	 Public Trust: Slow response times can erode public confidence in emergency services, particularly if delays are repeated or have serious consequences.
	 Displacement: Residents may be displaced for extended periods if their homes are rendered uninhabitable, leading to additional social and financial strain on the community.
	 Impact on Infrastructure: Fires can damage critical infrastructure such as electrical systems, roadways, or water lines, resulting in further disruptions.



	item 11-A.pdf
	TC Staff Report SE PI Farmers Mkt Final 2
	6-04-2024 Spec PB & TC mtg minutes - Approved
	09-24-2024 PB DRAFT minutes (002)

	item 11-B.pdf
	ADPB622.tmp
	ORDINANCE NO. 2024-07
	AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 1 “GENERAL PROVISIONS”,  CHAPTER 2  “ADMINISTRATION”, CHAPTER 6 “ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES”, CHAPTER 10 “ANIMALS”, CHAPTER 18 “BUILDINGS AND BUILDIN...
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA:
	Chapter 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS
	Sec. 1-11. General penalty.

	Chapter 2 ADMINISTRATION
	Chapter 42 - OFFENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL
	Sec. 42-4. Camping.
	Sec. 42-7. Spray or wash from sprinkler heads and other irrigation devices.
	Sec. 42-9. Trespass warnings on public property.

	ARTICLE II. NUDITY AND SEXUAL CONDUCT
	Sec. 42-31. Nudity and sexual conduct prohibited in establishments dealing in alcoholic beverages.
	Sec. 42-32. Nudity and sexual conduct prohibited in public.
	Sec. 42-33. Urinating or defecating in public.


	Chapter 46 - PARKS AND RECREATION
	ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL
	Sec. 46-3. Behavior prohibited within public parks.


	Chapter 51 - SPECIAL EVENTS
	Sec. 51-18. Enforcement.

	Chapter 62 - SOLID WASTE
	ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL
	Sec. 62-3. Removal of weeds and refuse.
	Sec. 62-73. Enforcement.


	Chapter 66 STORMWATER AND CONSERVATION
	ARTICLE III - ILLICIT CONNECTIONS AND DISCHARGE TO THE TOWN'S SEPARATE STORM SEWER SYSTEM (MS4)
	Sec. 66-59. Violations, enforcement and penalties.
	Sec. 66-60. Appeal of notice of violation.
	Sec. 66-61. Enforcement measures after appeal.


	Chapter 70 STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND OTHER PUBLIC PLACES
	ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL
	Sec. 70-1. Obstruction of street or sidewalk.
	* * *


	Chapter 74 TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES
	ARTICLE II – STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKIING
	Sec. 74-35. Parking prohibited for certain purposes.
	* * *


	Chapter 78 UTILITIES
	ARTICLE II. WATER AND SEWER SERVICE
	DIVISION 2 – WATER SERVICE
	Sec. 78-65. Cross-connection control.
	DIVISION 5. - INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM
	Sec. 78-122. Enforcement.
	Sec. 78-123. - Penalty.
	(a) A person violating any of the terms, conditions, orders, rules, regulations, permits, limitations or provisions shall be punished in accordance with the provisions herein. Any continuing violations may be enjoined and restrained by an injunctive o...
	(b) Violations of the industrial pretreatment program ordinance codified in this division may be referred to a special magistratemaster to issue orders, fines or liens as provided herein.
	ARTICLE III. - WATER CONSERVATION: LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION
	Sec. 78-142. Declaration; penalties.


	Chapter 82 VEGETATION
	* * *
	ARTICLE II. WEEDS AND NOXIOUS PLANTS
	Sec. 82-112. Notice to cut or remove.




	item 13-B.pdf
	ADPBF25.tmp
	Memo





